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Administrative-Finance Committee
August 13, 2012
6:30 P.M. — Conference Room

Call to Order

Establishment of Quorum

Public Comment

Discussion Items

a.

b.

C.

d.

Liquor License request — Chuck’s Southern Comforts
VFW “Walk All Our Soldiers Home” parade
Draft FYE April 30, 2012 Audit

Line of Credit

Other Business

Next Meeting — September 10, 2012

Adjournment



AGENDA MEMO
Administrative/Finance Commitiee
August 13, 2012

Issue Statement

An Ordinance amending Section 3-3-7-4 of the City Code to increase the number of Class
D liquor licenses from seven to eight.

Background/History

Chuck’s Southern Comfort Café has worked with the City of Darien to open a barbeque
restaurant in the former Comerstone building. They have requested a liquor license that
would allow them to serve alcohol in the restaurant and have a bar area that would serve
food as well, which falls under the definition of the Class D license. Currently there are
seven Class D licenses, and in order for them to operate under this plan the number of
licenses would need to be increased from six to seven.

Staff/Committee Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of this ordinance.

Alternate Consideration

Not approving the ordinance would be an alternate consideration.




CITY OF DARIEN

DU PAGE COUNTY, ILLINOIS

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3-3-7-4 OF THE DARIEN CITY CODE

ADOPTED-BY-THE
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
| OF THE
CITY OF DARIEEN

THIS 20" DAY OF AUGUST, 2012

Published in pamphlet form by authority of
the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Darien, DuPage County, Illinois, this

day of , 2012,




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3-3-7-4 OF THE DARIEN CITY CODE

SECTION 1: Section 3-3-7-4 of the Darien City Code, "Class D License,” is hereby
amended to provide as follows [deleted language stricken]:

3-3-7-4: CLASS D LICENSE:

(C) The number of class D licenses shall be seven-(Z) eight (8).

SECTION 2: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval, and shall subsequently be published in pamphlet form as provided by law,

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DARIEN, DU PAGE
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, this 20" day of August, 2012. |

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF DARIEN, DU PAGE C OUNTY,

ILLINOIS, this 20" day of August, 2012.

KATHLEEN MOESLE WEAVER, MAYOR
ATTEST:

JOANNE RAGONA, CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY




AGENDA MEMO
Administrative/Finance Committee
August 13, 2012

ISSUE STATEMENT

The City Council is requested to approve a motion authorizing the temporarj closure of streets
for the VFW “Walk All Our Soldiers Home™ parade and authorizing the police department to
assist in traffic control.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

The VFW would like to host a “Walk All Our Soldiers Home” parade at 10 am on Saturday,
September 22, 2012. The parade route will start at Mark DeLay School, and require the
ternporary closure of roads as the parade proceeds from Wilmette to Hinsbrook, to Beechnut, to
Ironwood, to Seminole, and East on 71* Street, ending in Darien Community Park. Barricades
from Municipal Services may also be necessary.

The VFW has been informed and agreed that any costs incurred by the City of Darien, including
personnel costs for Police Department overtime, would need to be reimbursed to the City. This
is identical to the handling of the Darien Dash and Homet Hustle requests previously approved
by the City of Darien.

STAFF/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council support the VFW through the temporary closure of the
above listed streets to facilitate the safety and efficient operation of the parade.

ALTERNATE CONSIDERATION

The alternate consideration would be to not approve the motion at this time.

DECISION MODE

This item will be placed on the August 20, 2012 Agenda for formal Council consideration and
approval.




¥ WALK ALL OUR SOLDIERS

HOME

More than 200 veterans and soldiers reside in the Darien community, but
these returning heroes do not have a place to cail home. Help us provide a
place for these men and women who have fought selflessly for our freedom

Join us for the first annual

“WALK ALL OUR SOLDIERS HOME”

Walk-a-thon Fundraiser

Saturday, September 22, 2012 at 10 a.m.

Begins: Mark Del.ay School — 6801 Wilmette Avenue
Ends: Reception at Darien Community Park — 71 Street and Clarendon Hills Road

Walk with our soldiers to show your appreciation for their service and to help
raise funds for this very important cause.

Ask family, friends, neighbors and local businesses to sponsor you in the walk -
Just $5.00 a brick will help us give our soldiers a home — One brick at a time.
Top sellers will enjoy special prizes and meet active duty soldiers and veterans.
Plus, donations are tax deductible. '

Attached is a sign-up sheet for your sponsors. The soldiers and veterans are
truly thankful for your dedication to helping "Walk all our Soldiers Home.”

Info; www.darienviw2838.org or call Bill Marchetti 630-826-4761

Kids 12 & under must be accompanied by an adult.




CITY OF DARIEN
MEMO

TO: Administrative/Finance Committee Members

FROM: Bryon D. Vana, City Administrator

DATE: August 7%, 2012

SUBJECT: August 13" Committee Meeting --Draft Audit
Presentation

The committee will review the draft audit report and management leiter for FYE 4-30-12. The
auditors will attend the committee meeting and review the report.

I also atiached the spreadsheet showing the General Fund audited revenues and expenditures
compared to the estimated numbers that were used in the FYE 4-30-12 budget.




City of Darien

Comparision of Estimated Actual

Fund Balance to Audited Fund Balance
asof 4/30/12.

Working Session Report

General Fund
Fund Balance

Estimated Actual Audited Difference

$ 3,406,638 § 4,108,526 $ 701,888.00

Water Fund

Cash Balance

Estimated Actual Audited Difference

% 1,194,465 4% 1,159,075 ¢ (35,389.85)

Motor Fuel Tax Fund
Fund Balance

Estimated Actual Audited Difference
% 195,640 $ 209,824 4§ 14,184.00

T
s
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Water Depreciation Fund
Cash Balance

Estimated Actual Audited | Difference
$ 89,963 § 276,274 % 186,310.98
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Capital Improvement Fund
Fund Balance

Estimated Actual Audited Difference
b 1i849,280 % 1864708 $ ___15422.00

Debt Service Fund
Fund Balance

Estimated Actual Audited ' Difference
4 2,502 % 4,207 % 1,705.00

e T -T:E—?—-t'
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City of Darien FYE 4/30/12
General Fund Revenue FYE 4/30/12 Estimated
For the FYE 4/30/12 Audited Revenue Revenue Difference
Taxes
Real Estate Taxes - Current 3110 2,018,860.00 2,018,000.00 860 .00
Real Estate Taxes - Prior 3111 0.00 0.00 0._00
Road and Bridge Tax 3120 187,391.00 187,000.00 351 .00
" Municipal Wtility Tax 3130 1.057,889.00 1,121,000.00 (63,111 .00)
Amusement Tax 3140 82,249.00 90,000.00 2,249 00
Hotel/Motel Tax 3150 32,451.00 31,000.00 1,451 .00
Personal Property Tax 3425 5,890.00| 4,500.00 1,380.00
Total Taxes 3,394,730.00 3,451,500.00 (56,770.00)
License, Permits, Fees
Business Licenses 3210 39,381.00 40,000.00 (812.00)
Liquor License 3212 53,000.00 53,000.00 0.00
Contractor Licenses 3214 18,710.00 15,000.00 3,710.00
Court Fines 3216 142,598.00 214,000.00 (71,402.00)
Ordinance Fines 3230 28,860.00 25,000.00 3,86D.00
Building Permits and Fees 3240 74,573.00 65,000.00 9,573.00
Telecommunication Taxes 3242 953,775.00 965,000.00 {11,225.00)
Cable T.V. Franchise Fee 3244 313,671.00 300,000.00 13,671.00
PEG - Fees - AT&T 3245 12,339.00 0.00 12,335.00
NICOR Franchise Fee 3246 31,772.00 40,000.00 (8,228.00)
Public Hearing Fees 3250 7,907.00 6,200.00 1,707.00
Elevator Inspeclions az55 5,090.00 4,800.00 290.00
Public improvement Permit 32580 250.00 0.00 250.00
Engineering/Prof Fee Reimb  [3265 40,122.00 35,000.00 5122.00
D.U.l. Technology Fines 3267 8.435.00 6,600.00 1,835.00
Police Special Service 3268 155,400.00 130,000.00 25,400.00
Stormwater Management Fees {3270 50.00] 0.00] 50.00
Total License, Permits, Fees 1,885,933.00 1,899,600.00f " (13,667.00)
Charges for Services
Inspections/Tap on/Permits 3320 975.00{ 0.00] 975.00
Total Charges for Services 975.00 0.00 975.00
Interaovernmental ‘
State Income Tax 3410 1,813,435.00 1,771,112.00 42,323.00
Local Use Tax 3420 322,118.00 328,000.00 {5,882.00)
Sales Taxes 3430 4,942,309.00 4.900,000.00{ 42 .309.00
Total Intergovernmental = - 7.077,862.00 6,999,112.00 78,750.00
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City of Darien FYE 4/30/12
General Fund Revenue FYE 4/30112 Estimated
For the FYE 4/30112 Audited Revenue Revenue Difference
Other Revenue
DADC Administration Fee 3450 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest Income 3510 21,778.00 22,000.00 (222.00)
Gain/Loss on Investment 3515 500.00 0.00 500.00
Water Share Expense 3520 250,000.00 250,000.00 Q.00
Towing Fees 94,533.00 0.00 94,533.00
Booking Fees 2,400.00 0.00 2,400.00
Police Report/Prints 3534 6,675.00 6,000.00 675.00
DARE Coniribution 3536 500.00 0.00 500.00 |
Grants 3560 46,754.00 0.00 . 486,754.00
Renis 3561 385,100.00 393,000.00 {7,900.00)
Reimbursement - Work-Comp 81,044.00 0.00 81,044.00
Operations Revenue 3,450.00 0.00 3,450.00
Other Reimbursements 3562 274,597.00 1756,000.00 99,587.00
Reimbursement - Rear Yard 1,500.00 0.00 1,600.00
Residential Concrete Reimb  |3563 145,123.00 66,912.00 78,211.00
Loan Proceeds "7 13568 483,466.00 483,465.00 - 1.00
Mail Box Reimbursement 3569 2,350.00 0.0Q 2,350.00
Sales of Wood Chips 3572 4,430.00 0.00 4,430.00
Sale of Equipment 3575 24,479.00 23,000.00 1,479.00
Drug seizure receipts 8,922.00 0.00 8,922.00
Miscellaneous Revenue 3580 73,756.00 100,000.00 (26.244.00)
Tolal Other Revenue 1,911.,357.00 1,519,377.00 391.980.00
Business District
Other Revenue
Rents 3561 0.00 0.00 0.00
‘Maintenance - Reimbursable 3567 0.00 0.00 0.00
Operations Revenue 3576 3.450.00 0.00 3.450.00
Total Other Revenue 3,450.00 0.00 3.450.00
Total General Fund Revenue 14,274 307.00 13,869,589.00 404,718.00

Page 4 of 10
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City of Darien FYE 4/30/12 FYE 4/30/112
General Fund Expenditures Audited Estimated
For the FYE 4/30112 Expenditures Expenditures Difference
Administrative Department
Salaries
Salaries 4010 435,145.00 436,000.00 855.00
Overime 4030 0.00 2,000.00 2.000.00
Total Salaries 435,145.00 438,000.00 2,855,00
Benefits
Social Security 4110 23,886.00 23,600.00 (296.00)
Medicare 4111 6,376.00 6,500.00 124.00
I.M:R.F. 4115 54,880.00 49,500.00 {5,380.00)
Medical/Life Insurance 4120 60,015.00 68,000.00 7,985.00
Supplemental Pensions 4135 24,253.00 25,000.00 747.00
Total Benefits 168,420.00 172,600.00 3,180.00
Materials and Supplies
Dues and Subscriptions 4213 2,944 00 2,000.00 {944.00)
Liability Insurance 4219 52,379.00 52,900.00 521.00
t egal Nolices 4221. . 8,427.00 8,000:00( - - - - (427.00)
Maintenance - Building 4223 6,354.00 10,000.C0 3,646.00
Maintenance - Equipment 4225 7,778.00 12,000.00 4,222 00
Maintenance - Grounds 4227 795.00 7,000.00 6,201.00
Maintenance - Vehicles 4229 170.00 0.00 {170.00)
Postage/Mailings 4233 3,882.00 4,600.00 718.00
Printing and Forms 4235 3,679.00 3,500.00 {179.00}
Public Relations 4239 26,527.00 28,000.00 1,473.00
Rent - Equipment 4243 2,340.00 2,400.00 60.00
Service Charge 4251 0.00 0.00 0.00
Suppiies - Office 4253 9,722.00 10,000.00 278.00
Supplies - Gther 4257 563001 2;000.00 1,497.00
Training and Education 4263 878.00 1,500.00 622.00
Travel/Meetings 4265 240.00 500.00 260.00
Telephone 4267 57,716.00 61,500.00 3,784.00
Utilities (Elec,Gas, Wir,Sewer) 4271 3,299.00 . 3,600.00 201.00
Vehicle (Gas and Qil) 4273 6,741.00 7,000.00 250.00
Total Materials and Supplies 194,378.00 216,400.00 22,022.00
Contractual
Audit 4320 11,675.00 11,675.00 . 0.00
Consulting/Professional 4325 82,239.00 93,950.00 11,711.00
Conslt/Prof Reimbursable 4328 0.00 0.00 0.00
Contingency 4330 3,622.00 10,000.00 6,378.00
Janitorial Service 4345 13,002.00 15,500.00 2 498.00
Total Contractual 110,538.00 131,125.00 20,587.00
Other Charges
Transfer to Other Funds 4605 0.00 1,600,000.00 1,600.000.00
Total Other Charges 0.00 1,600,000.00 1,600.000.00
Total Expenditures - Administrafive 509,481.00 2,558,125.00 1.648.644.00
Page 5 of 10
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City of Darien FYE 4/30/12 FYE 4/30/112
General Fund Expenditures Audited Estimated
For the FYE 4/30/12 Expenditures Expenditures Difference
City Council Department
Salaries
Salaries 4010 42,450.00 42,750.00 300.00
Total Salaries 42 450.00 42,750.00 300.00
Benefits
Social Security 4110 2,632.00 2,651.00 19.00
Medicare 4111 616.00 620.00 4.00
LM.R.F. 415 36.00 _1,960.00 1,864.00
Total Benefils - 3,284.00 5,171.00|. 1,887.00
Materials and Supplies
Boards and Commissions 4205 1,246.00 2,000.00 754.00
Bues and Subscriptions 4213 749.00 2,500.00 1,751.00
Liability Insurance 4219 43,281.00 42,060.00 (1,221.00)
Public Relations 4239 1,143.00 1,5600.00 357.00
Supplies - Office SRRREES 14253 0.00 -goel - s 0,004
Travel/Meetings 4265 516.00 750.00 234.00
Total Materials and Supplies 45,935.00 48,810.00 1,875.00
Contractual
Consulting/Professional 4325 24,393.00 27,000.00 2,607.00
Trolley Contracts 4366 _64.00 900.00 836.00
Total Contractual 24,457.00 27.800.00 3.443.00
Total Expenditures - City Coungil 117,126.00 124,631.00 7.505.00
Page 6 of 10
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City of Darien FYE 4/30/12 FYE 4/30/112
General Fund Expenditures Audited Estimated
For the FYE 4/30/12 Expenditures Expenditures Difference
Community Development Department
Salaries
Salaries 4010 _272,560.00 _263,500.00 (9,060.00)
Total Salaries 272,560.00 263,500.00 (9,060.00)
Benefits
Social Security 14110 14,862.00 15,000.00 138.00
Medicare 4111 3,827.00 4,000.00 173.00
LM.R.F. 4115 33,024.00 28,600.80 {4,424.00}
Medical/l.ife Insurance 4120 36,105.00 39,000.00 2,895.00
Supplemental Pensions 4135 3,323.00 3,600.00 277.00
Total Benefits 91,141.00 90,200.00 (941.00)
Materials and Supplies
Boards and Commissians 4205 2,043.00 2,300.00 257.00
Dues and Subscriptions 4213 453.00 750.00 297.00
Liability Insurance : e 4219 - 35,427.00 40,000,001 .- - .. 4,573.00 |
Maintenance - Vehicles 4229 107.00 1,800,00 1,793.00
Postage/Mailings 4233 1,222.00 1,600.00 378.00
Printing and Forms 4235 792.00 500.00 (292.00)
Supplies - Office 4253 21.00 500.00 479.00
Training and Education 4263 510.00 400.00 {110.00)
Travel/Meetings 4265 80.00 0.00 (80.00)
Vehicle (Gas and Oil) 4273 1,633.00 1,800.00 267.00
Total Materials and Supplies 42,288.00 49,850.00 7,562.00
Contractual .
Consulting/Professional 4325 33,062.00 28,500.00 (4,562.00)
Conslt/Prof Reimbursahle 4328- - 67,276.00 —-50;500.00 ~{18.776.00)
Total Contractual 100,338.00 79,000.00 (21.338.00)
Total Expenditures - Community Development 506,327.00 482,550.00 (23,777.00)|
Page 7 of 10
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City of Darien FYE 4/30/112 FYE 4/30/M112
General Fund Expenditures Audited Estimaied
For the FYE 4/30/12 Expenditures Expenditures Difference
Streets Department
Salaries
Salaries 4010 584,397.00 483,400.00 (110,897.00)
Qverlime 4030 _9.448.00 _60,000.00 50,552.00
Total Salaries 603,845.00 543,400.00 (60,445.00}
Benefits
Social Security 4110 35,788.00 56,045.00 20,257.00
Medicare 4111 8,469.00 13,110.00 4.641.00
LLM.R.F. 4115 71,379.00 101,500.00 30,121.00
Medical/Life Insurance 4120 126,374.00 140,000.00 13,626.00
Supplemental Pensions 4135 2,677.00 _2,500.00 (177.00)
Total Benefits 244,687.00 313,155.00 68,468.00
Materials and Supplies
Liability Insurance 4219 55,267.00 70,000.00 14,733.00
Maintenance - Building 4223 - - 18,595.00 - 21,000:00{ -~ -2,405.00
Maintenance - Equipment 4225 27,772.00 21,050.00 (6,722.00)
Maintenance - Vehicles 4229 24,358.00 23,000.00 {1,358.00)
Postage/Mailings 4233 1,197.00 1,000.00 (197.00)
Renl - Equipment 4243 18,044.00 23,500.00 5,456.00
Supplies - Office 4253 1,918.00 1,500.00 (418.00)| .
Supplies - Other 4257 35,144.00 35,500.00 356.00
Small Tools & Equipment 4259 14,751.00 14,500.00 (251.00)
Training and Education 4263 712.00 1,000.00 288.00
Uniforms 4269 3,947.00 6,900.00 2,953.00
Utilities {Elec,Gas,Wir,Sewer) 4271 3.025.00 3,600.00 571.00
Vehicle (Gas and Oil) 4273 65,923.00 77,986:80 11.077-00
Total Materials and Supplies 270,657.00 299,550.00 28,893.00
Contractual
Consulting/Professional 4325 46,423.00 50,000,00 3,577.00
Forestry 4350 27,438.00 36,900.00 9,462.00
Street Light Oper & Maint. 4359 87,746.00 80,000.00 (7,746.00)
Mosquito Abatement 4365 40,887.00 40,887.00 0.00
Street Sweeping 4373 18,380.00 29,000.00 10,620.00
Drainage Projects 4374 30,918.00 30,000.00 (918.00)
Tree Trim/Removal 4375 58,405.00 84,490.00 {(13.915.00)
Total Contractual 350,197.00 351,277.00 1,080.00
Capital Outlay
Residential Concrete Program 4381 146,455.00 66,812.00 {79,543.00)
Equipmenl 4815 146,266.00 300,500.00 154,234.00
Debl Retire 4905 0.00] 0.00] 0.00
Total Capital Cutlay 292,721.00 367,412.00 74.681.00
Total Expenditures - Streets 1,762,107.00 1,874,794.00 112.687.00
Page 8 of 10
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Eity of Darien
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FYE 4/30/12 FYE 4/30/112
General Fund Expenditures Audited Estirmated
For the FYE 4/30/12 Expenditures Expenditures Difference
Police Department
| Salaries
Salaries 4010 427,123.00 426,000.00 {1,123.00)
Salaries - Officers 4020 3,440,754.00 3,434,000.00 (B,754.00)
Overtime 4030 491,446.00 _550,000.00 58,554.00
Total Salaries 4,359,323.00 4.410,000.00 50,677.00
Benefits
Social Security 4110 27,018.00 29,000.00 1,982.00
Medicare 4111 51,193.00 55,000.00 3,807.00
ILM.R.F. 4115 54,112.00 48,000.00 {5,112.00)
Medical/Life Insurance 4120 419,350.00 483,000.00 63,650.00
Police Pension 4130 1,185,029.00 1,174,292.00 (10,737.00)
Supplemental Pensions 4135 48,495.00 52,800.00 | 4.305.00
Total Benefits 1,785,197.00 1,843,092.00 57,895.00
- Materials and Supplies RS B - D B
Animal Control 4201 1,049.00 800.00 (249.00)
Auxiliary Police 4203 4,149.00 9,600.00 5,451.00
Beards and Commissions 4205 440.00 5,000.00 4 560,00
Dues and Subscriptions 4213 3,681.00 3,700.00 19.00
Investigation and Equipment 4217 . 20,760.00 £5,000.00 34,240.00
Liability Insurance 4219 201,097.00 220,000.00 18,803.00
Maintenance - Building 4223 47,375.00 44 175.00 {3,200.00)
Maintenance - Equipment 4225 10,576.00 9,500.00 (1,076.00)
Maintenance - Vehicles 4229 50,347.00 38,000.00 {12,347.00)
Pastage/Mailings 4233 3,120.00 3,000.00 (120.00}
Printing and Forms 4235 3,524-00 3,000.00 (524.00)
Public Relations 42348 5,658.00 10,750.00 5,092.00
Rent - Equipment 4243 1,628.00 4,500.00 2,872.00
Supplies - Office 4253 6,091.00 7,500.00 1,409.00
Supplies - Other 4257 0.00 0.00 0.00
Training and Education 4263 16,704.00 20,000.00 3,296.00
Travel/Meelings 4265 5,852.00 9,000.00 3,148.00
Telephone 4267 14,567.00 14,000.00 {567.00)
Uniforms 4269 31,836.00 71,000.00 39,164.00
Utilities (Elec,Gas,Wir,Sewer) 4271 5,283.00 9,500.00 4,217.00
Vehicle (Gas and OQil) 4273 145,421.00 120,000.00 (25.421.00Y
Total Materials and Supplies 579,158.00 658,025.00 78,867.00
Contractual
Consulting/Professional 4325 349,101.00 350,000.00 8§099.00
Contractual Services 4335 24,304.00 26,240.00 1,836.00
Dumeg/Fial/Child Center 4337 26,610.00 24,000.00 (2.610.00)
Total Contractual 400,015.00 400,240.00 225 00
Capital Qutlay
Equipment 4815 630,010.00 700,000.00 £9.990.00
Total Capital Qutlay 630,010.00 700,000.00 363.06
Total Expenditures - Police 7.753,703.00 8,011,357.00 257.654.00
Paoe 9 of 10




City of Darien

FYE 4/30/12 FYE 4/30/112
General Fund Expenditures Audited Eslimated
For the FYE 4/30/112 Expenditures Expendiiures Difference
Business Districts Department
Materials and Supplies
Liability Insurance 4219 3,459.00 3,459.00 0.00
Maintenance - Building 4223 0.00 0.00 0.00
Maintenance - Equipment 4225 21,746.00 17,500.00 (4,246.00)
Maintenance - Grounds 4227 10,378.00 35,000.00 24,622.00
Utifities {Elec,Gas,Witr,Sewer} 4271 _4,562.00 _2,500.00 {2.062.00)
Total Materials and Supplies 40,145.00 58,459.00 18,314.00
Debt Service
Debt Service - 2007A Bonds 4952 538,232.00 399,000.00 (139,232.00)
Total Debt Service 538,232.00 359,000.00 (139.232.00)
Total Expenditures - Business District 578,377.00 457,459.00 (120,918.00)
Total General Fund Expenditures 11,827,121 .00_ 13,508,816.00 1,881,795.00

Page 10 of 10
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discus sion Purposes Only

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended
April 30,2012

Prepared by the General Administration Department

Michael J. Coren
City Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Darien, llinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Darien, Illinois as of and for the year ended April 30, 2012, which collectively comprise
the City of Darien, 1llinois® basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
basic financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Darien, Illinois® management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
‘misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating fhe overall
basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Darien,
Illinois as of April 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial posifion and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The City of Darien, lllinois adopted GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions during the year ended April 30, 2012. The statement
changed the classifications of governmental fund balances and clarified the definitions of
existing fund types. The adoption of this statement had no effect on the any of the City of Darien,
1llinois’ governmental funds’ assets or liabilities nor was there any effect to the total amount of

any of the City of Darien, 1llinois’ governmental fund balances as of and for the year ended
April 30, 2012.

-1-
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
staternents in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Darien, Illinois” basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and the financial information listed as schedules and
supplemental data in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and the schedules and supplemental data are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information s fairly stated in all material respects’in relation to the basic financial statements as
a whole.

We have also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards penerally accepted in the
United States of America, the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Darien,
Illinois’ basic financial statements as of and for the year ended April 30, 2011 (none of which is
presented herein), and we expressed unqualified opinions on those basic financial statements.
Those audits were conducted for the purposes of forming opinions on those basic financial
statement taken as a whole. The 2011 supplementary information is presented for additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those basic financial statements, and
in our opinion, the 2011 supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements from which it has been derived.

Naperville, lllinois
August 13, 2012

-2-
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Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities T otal
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents I 4242881 § 1,435349 3 5,678,230
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)
Property 1axes 2,311,307 - 2.311,307
Accounts - 899,668 899,668
Intergovernmental 2,099,432 - 2,099,432
Other 356,413 - 356,413
Net pension asset 75,883 - oo 75,883
Unamortized bond issuance costs 15,251 25,824 41,075
Inventories 23,806 - 23,806
Capital assets nol being depreciated 5,288,336 100,000 5,388,336
Capital assets being depreciated 9,833,148 6,973,553 16,806,701
Total assets 24,246,457 9,434,394 33,680,851
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 185,661 295,206 480,867
Accrued payroll 202,551 36,825 239,376
Accrued interest payable 68,352 50,779 119,131
Uneamned revenue 2,311,307 - 2.311,307
Deposits payable 113,153 - 113,153
Other payables 2,708 - 2,708
Darien Helping Darien Fund 1,182 - 1,182
DTC maintenance escrow 10,000 - 10,000
Noncurrent liabilities
Due within one year 755,700 176,965 932,665
Due in more than one year 4,760,601 3,089,059 7,849,660
Total liabilities 8,411,215 3,648,834 12,060,049
NET ASSETS .
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 10,153,408 3,859,172 14,012,580
Restricted for
Special service area 8,737 - 3,737
Public safety 20,301 - 20,301
Highways and streets 209,824 - 209,824
Debt service 4,207 - 4,207
Unrestricted 5.438,765 1,926,388 7,365,153
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 15835242 § 5785560 & 21,620,802

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Propgrom Revenues
Charges Operaling Capital
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services (ranls Granls
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities
General povernment $  1,584351 § 1,246,573 % - $ -
Highways and streets ' 1,694,510 590,841 659,569 150,000
Public salety ) 10,356,702 267,443 55,676 -
Interest and fiscal charges on
Jong-term debt 197,851 - - -
Toltal povernmental activities 13,833,414 2.104_857 715,245 ' 150,000
Busincés-"rj,'pc Activities -
Water operations 4,672,392 4,587,672 - -
Total business-type activities 4,672,392 4,587,672 - -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT § 18505806 § 6,692,529 § 715245 § 150,000
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Net (Expensc) Revenue and Change in Net Assels

Primary Government
Governmental  Business-Type
Activitics Activilies Total
b (337,778} § - b (337,778)
(294,100) - (294,100}
(10,033,583} - (10,033,583)
(197,851} - (197,851)
(10,863 312) - (10,863,312)
- (84,720) (84,720)
- ' (84,720) (84,720}
{10,863,.312) (84,720) (10,948,032}
General Revenues
Taxes
Properly 2,332315 - 2,332,315
Replacement 5,890 - 5,890
Income 1,813,435 - 1,813 435
Sales 4,942.309 - 4,942,309
Local use 322,118 - 322,118
Telecommunications 953,775 - 953,775
Utility 1,057,889 - 1,057,889
Amusement 92,249 - 92,249
Hotel/motel 32,451 - 32,451
Road and bridge 187,391 - 187,391
Inveslment income 42,121 19,977 62,098
Miscellaneous 157,64% 3,403 161,052
Total 11,939,552 23,380 11,962,972
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - 1,076,280 (61,340) 1,014,940
NET ASSETS, MAY } 16,136,762 5,846,900 21,933,662
Prior period adjuslment (1,377,800} - (1,377,800}
NET ASSETS, MAY 1, RESTATED 14,758,962 5,846,900 20,605,862

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30

$ 15835242 § 5785560 3 21,620,802

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

April 30, 2012

Capital
General Improvements Nonmajor Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,173,296 $ 1,877,100 % 192,485 3§ 4,242,881
Receivables (net, where applicable,
of allowances for uncollectibles)
Property taxes - 2,163,487 - 147,820 2,311,307
Intergovernmental 2,056,554 - 42,878 2,099,432
Other ] 355,487 - 926 356,413
Inventory 23,806 - - 23,806
TOTAL ASSETS § 6772630 % 1,877,100 3§ 384,109 § 9,033,839
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable h 171,023 § 12392 § 2,246 % 185,661
Accrued payroll 202,551 - - 202,551
Deferred revenue 2,163 487 - 147,820 2,311,307
Deposits payable 113,153 - - 113,153
Other paynbles 2,708 - - 2,708
Darien Helping Darien Fund 1,182 - - 1,182
DTC maintenance escrow ) 10,000 - - 10,000
Total liabilitics 2,664,104 12,392 150,066 2,826,562
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable .
Inventory 23,806 - - 23,806
Restricted
Special service area - - 8.737 8,737
Public safety 9,026 - 11,275 20,301
Highways and streets . - - 209,824 209,824
Debt serivce - : - 4,207 4,207
Unrestricted
Assigned
Capital improvements - 1,864,708 - 1,864,708
Unassigned
General Fund 4.075,694 - - 4,075,694
Total fund balances 4,108,526 1,864,708 234,043 6,207,277
TOTAL L1ABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES 5 6,772,630 § 1,877,100 3 384,109 F 5,033 839

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 3 2 -
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RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS § 6,207,277

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial ,
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 15,121,484

Net pension asset is shown as an asset on the statement of net assets 75,883

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

Bonds payable (4,465,000)
Notes payable (483,466)
Compensated absences payable ¢501,332)
Net pension obligation (46,893)

Unamortized premiums on long-term debt are other financing sources in
governmental funds in the year of issuance bul are capitalized and
amortized on the statement of net assets ©{19,610).

Deferred charges from bond issues are shown as an
asset on the statement of net assets but expensed in
the period in governmental funds ,
Unamorlized bond issuance costs 15,25}

Accrued interest payable is not recorded in governmental .
funds but is recorded on the statement of net assets - (68,352)

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 5 15,835,242

See accornpanying notes to financial statements.
- 3 3 -
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discus sion Purposes Only
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

) Capital
General lmprovements Nonmajor Total
REVENUES :
Taxes $ 4348505 % 202,256 3 111,199 § 4,661,960
Licenses and permits . 932,158 - - 932,158
Intergovermmental 7,133,538 150,000 659,569 7,943,107
Charges for services 525,048 - - 925,048
Investment income 21,778 18,684 1,659 42,121
Miscellaneous 405,300 - - 405,300
Total revenues 13,766,327 370,940 772,427 14,909,694
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 1,573,079 ; - - 1,573,079
Highways and streets 1,762,107 - 485,493 2,247,600
Public safety 7,753,703 - - 7,753,703
Capital outlay - 2,082,177 51,595 2,133,772
Debt service
Principal 510,970 125,000 - 635,970
Interest and fiscal charges 27,262 76,569 104,375 208,206
Total expenditures . 11,627,121 2,283,746 641,463 14,552,330
EXCESS {DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 2,139,206 (1,912,806) 130,964 357,364
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Installment contract proceeds 483,466 - - 483,466
Transfers in - 3,005,946 - 3,005,946
Transfers (out) . {3,000,000) - (5,946) {3,005,946)
Proceeds from sale of assels 24,444 656,875 - 681,319
Total other financing sources {uses) {2,492,090) 3,662,821 (5,946) 1,164,785
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (352,884) 1,750,015 125,018 1,522,149
FUND BALANCES, MAY 4.461,410 114,693 109,025 4,685,128
FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30 ¥ 4108526 § 1864708 §% 234,043 §  6,207277

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 5§ 1,522,149

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, they are
capitalized and depreciated in the statement of activities 846,139

Some expenses in the statemnent of activities (e.g., depreciation) do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in governmental funds (847,364)

Proceeds from the disposal of capital assets is reported in the governmental
funds, but gain or loss on the disposal of capital assels is calculated and
reported in the statement of activities (647,200)

The issuance of loans payable is reported as an other financing source
in governmental funds but as an increase in principal outstanding
in the statement of activities (483,466)

The repayment of-the principal portion-long-term-debt is-reported as
an expenditure when due in governmenltal funds but as a reduction of
principal outstanding in the statement of activities 635,970

The change in accrued interest payable on long-term debt is reported :
as an expense on the stalement of activities 9,540

Certain cosls associated with the issuances of bonds are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds on the statement of activities: .

Amortization of issnance cosls {1,271)
Discount on issuance (1,182)
Premium on issuance 3,268

The change in compensated absences payable is shown as an expense
on the slatement of aclivities 38,830

The change in the net pension obligation is shown as an expense
on the statement of activities ‘ ' (10,943)

The change in the net pension asset is shown as a reduction of expense
on the slatement of activities 11,810

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ¥ 1,076,280

See accompanying notes 10 financial statements.
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINCIS

STATEMENT CF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

April 30, 2012

Freliminary and Tentative
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CURRENT ASSETS
Caush and cosh equivalents
Receivobies {nel, where applicable,
of allownnces for uncollectibles)
‘Water - billed
‘Water - unbilled

Total current nssels

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Unamorlized bond issuance cosls
Capital assets

Assels not being depreciated
Assels being depreciated
Cosl
Accumuiated depreciation

Net copital assets being depreciated
Net capital assels

Toiol noncurrent assels

Total assels

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounis payzble
Accrued payroll
Accrued inlerest poyable
Bonds poyable
Compenstted sbsences payable

Total current liabilitics

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds poyable
Unamortized bond diseount
Compensated obsences payable
Net pension cbligation

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabililies

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 3 6 -

Business-Type
A clivities
Water
O perations

$ 1,435,349
13,967

885,701

2,335,017

——

25,824
106,000

15,806,540
(8,832,987

6,973,553

7,073,553

7,099,377

0.434.354

— e e

295,206
36,825
50,779

170,000

6,965

559,775
3,055,000
(10,619)
39,468
5,210
3,089,059
3,648,834
1,859,172
1,926,388

§ 5785560




CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Inspections/tap on/permits
Sale of meters
Other water sales

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Personnel services
Materials and supplies
Contractual services
Capital related - uncapitalized

Total operating expenses excluding
depreciation

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE
DEPRECIATION

DEPRECIATION
OPERATING INCOME
NONQOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income
Miscellaneous income
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, MAY 1

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business-Type
Activities
Water
Operations

3 4,562,083
16,385

3,586

5,618

4,587,672

676,529
629,229
2,808,839
70,401

4,184,908

402,674

344,539

58,135

19,977
3,403
(142,855)
(119,475)
(61,340)
5,846,500

5 5,785,560




CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers ond users
Paymenls to suppliers
Paymenis to employees

Net cash from operating aclivilies

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
None

Net eash from noncapital financing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paymenls
Interest and fiscal charges
Miscellaneous receipls

Net cash rom capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received
Net cash from investing activitics

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVILENTS, MAY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVILENTS, APRIL 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income ‘
Adjustments Lo reconcile operating income
to net cash from operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in asscis and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenscs
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Compensated absences payable
Net pension obligation

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
.- 3 8 -

Business-Type
Activitics
Water
Operations

§ 4,454,944
(3,592,841}
{627,647}

234456

(165,000)
(142,672)
3,403

_{304.269)

19,977

19,977

(49,836)
- 1,485,185

§ 1435349

b 58,135

344,539

(132,728)
5,033

(89.405)
16,860
30,806
1216

b 234,456




Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

April 30, 2012

Pension
Trust Fund Agency
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,387,253 § 13,059
Investments -
U.S. Treasury obligations 947,478 -
Annuities 55,646 -
U.S.'agency obligations 6,818,038 -
Money market mutual funds 382,707 -
Municipal bonds 694,812 -
Corporate bonds 1,743,746 -
Equity mutual funds 7,925,497 -
Receivables
"~ Accrued interest 03,540 -
Prepaid expenses 4,367 -
Total assets 20,053,084 3§ 13,059
TIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4978 3§ -
Due to others - 10,716
Impact fees payable - 2,317
Deposits payable - 26
Total liabilities 4,978 § 13,059

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS

$ 20,048,106

See accompanying notes to financia) siatements.
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Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Investment income
Net appreciation in

fair value of investments - -
Interest

Total investment income
Less investment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS

Pension benefits

Contractual services

Administrative expenses
Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

May 1

April 30

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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$ 1,185,043
310,448

1,495,491

311214
586,555

897,769

(45,036)

852,733

2,348,224

1,135,485
17,917
6,079

1,159,481

1,188,743

18,859,363

$ 20,048,106
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT]NG POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Darien, Illinois (the City) have been prepared in-
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
as applied to povernment units (hereinafter referred to as generally accepied accounting
principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described
below.

a.  Financial Reporting Entity

The City is a municipal corporation governed by a seven-member council consisting
of seven aldermen and the mayor. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, these financial statements present the City and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable.
Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of
the City’s operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the
primary government.

The City’s-fimancial statements-include a-pension trust fund:
Police Pension Employees Retirement Systemn

The City’s police employees participate in the Police Pension Employees Retirement
System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefit of these employees and is
governed by a five-member pensicn board. Two members appointed by the City’s
Mayor, one elected pension beneficiary, and two elected police employees constitute
the pension board. The City and PPERS participants are obligated fo fund all PPERS
costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of 1llinois is authorized to establish
benefit levels and the City is authorized to approve the actuarial assumptions used in
the determination of contribution levels. Although it possesses many of the
characteristics of a legally separate government, PPERS is reported as if it were part
of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the
pensions of the City’s police employees, and because of the fiduciary nature of such
activities. PPERS is reported as a pension trust fund.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
b.  Fund Accounting

The City uses funds to report on its financial position and the changes in its financial
position. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain city functions or
activities. |

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Funds are classified into the following categories: governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of the City’s general
activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special
revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects
funds), the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service fund), and the
management of funds held in trust that can be used for governmental services
{permanent fund). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the
general government not accounted for in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided
either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies
primarily within the City (internal service funds). Pursuant to GASB Statement
No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds, the City has
chosen to apply all GASB pronouncements as well as those FASB pronouncements
issued on or before November 30, 1989 to account for enterprise funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties,
including other povernments. The City utilizes pensicn trust funds and agency funds
which are generally used to account for assets that the City holds in fiduciary
capacity or on behalf of others as their agent.

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statements of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
City. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these
financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reporied separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
c.  Government-Wide and Fund Financial Staterents (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function, segment, or program are offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-
wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and mnajor
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in
—another fund.

The Capital Improvements Fund is used to account for the proceeds of the
Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007A restncted to expenditures for
the related capital projects.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Watér Operations Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer
services to the residents of the City. All activities necessary to provide such
services are accounted for in this fund including, but not limited to,
administration, operations, financing and related debt service, and biiling and
collections.

The City reports the following fiduciary funds:

The Police Pension Fund accounts for the activities of the accumulation of
resources to pay pension costs. Resources are contributed by members at rates
fixed by state statutes and by the City which uses the annual property tax levy
to fund the employer contribution.

Agency Funds account for assets held on behalf of third parties and that do not
involve the measurement of operating results.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
d.  Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
and pension trust fund financial statements. Revenues and additions are recorded
when earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a liability is incurred.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e.,
intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as
all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Qperating
revenues and expenses are directly attributable to the operation of the proprietary

funds. Nonoperating revenue/expenses are incidental to the operations of these
funds.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual (i.e., when they become both measurable and available). “Measurable”
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers reveriues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period,
except for sales taxes, income taxes and telecommunications taxes which use a
90-day. period. The -City- recognizes—property taxes when they become both
measurable and available in the year intended to finance. Expenditures are recorded
when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general long-
term debt are recorded as expenditures when due.

Sales taxes owed to the state at year end; franchise taxes, licenses, charges for
services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Income and motor fuel taxes and fines collected and held by the state or county at
year end on behalf of the City also are recognized as revenue. Fines and permits
revenues are not susceptible to accrnal because generally they are not measurable
until received in cash.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues (i.e.,
federal and state grants), the legal and contractual requirements of the numerous
individual programs are used as guidelines. Monies that are virtually unrestricted as
to purpose of expenditure, which are usually revocable only for failure to comply
with prescribed compliance requirements, are reflected as revenues at the time of
receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation
(Continued)

The City reporis unearmned/deferred revenue on its financial statements.
Unearned/deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the
measurable and available or eamed criteria for recognition in the current period.
Unearned/deferred: revenues also arise when resources are received by the
government before it has a legal claim to them as when grant monies are received
prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, vwhen both
the revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to
the resources, the liability for uneamed/deferred revenue is removed from the
financial statements and revenue 1s recognized.

e.  Cash and Investments
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City’s proprietary funds consider all
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

City investments with a maturity of one year or less when purchased are stated at
cost or amortized cost. City investments with a maturity greater than one year and
all pension fund investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 31.

Illinois Funds, a money market mutual fund created by the Illinois State Legislature
and controlled by the Illinois State Treasurer is reported at a $1 per share value,
which equals the City’s fair value in the pool. - .

f. Interfund Receivables/Payables
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds™ (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds”
(i.€., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between
funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.”

g. Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out
(FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund inventories, if any, are recorded as
expenditures when purchased.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued})

h.

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses, if any.

Capital Assets

Capita! assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, storm sewers), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $50,000 for machinery, equipment, and vehicles, $100,000 for building

improvements, $100,000 for buildings, $200,000 for infrastructure and an estimated - - - -

useful life in excess of one year, and any amount for land. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized
and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as
applicable.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed. Intérest incumred during the construction phase of capital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
consiructed. Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 25-50
Building improvements - 8-25
Land improvements 15-35
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment 5-20
Infrastructure - streets 25-50
Waterworks and sewage system - 25

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits. Vacations must be taken in the year following the one in
which it was earned. Unused vacation time is not ailowed to be carried over to the
subsequent year without approval. Sick leave may be accumulated for future use.
City employees may accrue up to 120 or 150 hours depending on the employment
classification. The City’s policy allows for a bonus to be paid for those employees
who have not used sick days in the given year. Accumulated amounts are paid out at
retirement at a rate of 50% of the employee’s current hourly salary rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) '

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
] Compensated Absences (Continued)

Vested or accumulated vacation leave are reported as an expenditure and a fund
liability of the governmental fund that will pay it once retirement or separation has
occurred, Vested or accumulated vacation and sick-leave of proprietary funds and

* governmental activities are recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the
benefits accrue to employees.

k. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial

_ statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund
financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, govemmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount
of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the
actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

1. Fund Balances/Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance
for amounts that are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required
te be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for amounts
constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for a specific purpose,
or externally imposed by outside entities. Committed fund balance is constrained by
formal actions of the City Council, which is considered the City’s highest level of
decision making authority. Formal actions include resolutions and ordinances
approved by the Board. Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained by
the City’s intent to use them for a specific purpose. The authority to assign fund
balance has been delegated to the City Administrator. Any residual fund balance of
the General Fund is reported as unassigned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1. Fund Balances/Net Assets (Continued)

The City has not adopted a flow of funds policy and therefore applies the flow of
funds from GASB Statement No. 54, which prescribes that the funds with the highest
level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available
for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the City considers committed funds to
be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds. For net assets,
restricted funds are spent first then unrestricted funds,

In the govemment-wide financial statements, restricted net assets are legally

_restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, represents the City’s investment in the book value of capital assets, less
any outstanding debt that was issued to construct or acquire the capital asset.

None of the restricted net assets or restricted fund balance results from enabling
legislation adopted by the City.

m. Interfund Transactions

Interfund services are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses
initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.

Al other interfund transactions, except interfund services and reimbursements, are
reported as transfers.

n.  Accounting Estimates .

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and Jiabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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2.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment poo] that is available for use by all funds, except
the pension trust funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed on the financial
statements as “cash and investments.” In addition, cash and investments are separately
held by several of the City’s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust funds
are held separately from those of other funds.

a. City Deposits and Investments

The City’s investment policy authorizes the City to invest in all investments allowed
by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). These include deposits/investments in insured
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury
and U.S. agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with
portfolios of securities issued or guaranteed by the United States Government or
agreements to repurchase these same obligations, repurchase agreements, short-term
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two
standard rating services, Illinois Funds (created by the Illinois State Legislature
under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a §1 per share value which is
equal to the participants fair value), and the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund
‘(IMET), a not-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the 1llinois Municipal
Code and managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members.
IMET is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in
IMET are valued at IMET’s share price, the price for which the investment could be
sold. The City’s investment policy does limit its deposits 1o financial institutions
that are members of the FDIC system and are capable of posting collateral for
amounts in excess of FDIC insurance.

11 is the policy of the City to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the
highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash

flow demands of the City and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the
investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the .
overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy are, in order of priority,
safety of principal, liquidity, and yield. '

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the
event of bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s
investment policy requires pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of

federal depository insurance. The investment policy does not address how collateral
is held.
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2.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
a. City Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the City limits its
exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for short
and long-term cash flow needs while providing a reasonable rate of return based on
the current market. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the City does not
directly invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase.

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The City limits its exposure to credit risk by limiting investments to the
types of securities listed above; pre-qualifying the financial institutions,
broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with which the City will do business in
accordance with the City’s investment policy; diversifying the investment portfolio
so that the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or from any one
individual issuer will be minimized.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the City will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the
City’s investment' policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with
the underlying investments held by an independent third party custodian and
evidenced by safekeeping receipts.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the City has a high percentage of its
investments mnvested in one type of investment. The City’s investment policy
requires diversification of investments to avoid unreasonable risk. The investments
shall be diversified by:

s Limiting investments to avoid over concentration in securities from a specific
issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities);

e Limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks;

» Investing in securities with varying maturities; and

» Continuously investing a porlion of the portfolio in readily available funds such
as local government investment pools (LGIPs), money markel funds, or
overnight repurchase agreements lo ensure that appropriate liquidity is
maintained in order to meet ongoing obligations.
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2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
b.  Police Pension Fund Deposits and Investments

The Police Pension Fund’s investment policy authorizes the Police Pension Fund to
invest in all investments allowed by ILCS. These include deposits/investments in
insured commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, interest-bearing obligations
of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, interest-bearing bonds of the State of llinois
or any county, township, or municipal corporation of the State of Illinois, money
market mutual funds whose investments consist of obligations of the U.S. Treasury
or U.S. agencies, separate accounts managed by life insurance companies, mutual
funds, corporate bonds, common and preferred stock, Illinois Funds (created by the
Nlinois State Legislature under the control of the State Treasurer that maintains a $1
per share value which is equal to the participants fair value), and IMET, a not-for-
profit investment trust formed pursuant to the 1llinois Municipal Code and managed
by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members. IMET is not
registered with the SEC as an investment company. Investments in IMET are valued
at IMET’s share price, the price for which the investment could be sold.

It is the policy of the Police Pension Fund to invest its funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the
cash flow demands of the Police Pension Fund and conforming to all state and local
statutes governing the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person™
standard for managing the overall portfolio. The primary objectives of the policy
-are;in order of priority, safety-of principal; risk aversion, rate-ofreturn;-and liquidity.

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the
event of bank failure, the Police Pension Fund’s deposits may not be returned to it.
The Police Pension Fund’s investment policy does not require pledging of collateral

for all bank balances in excess of federal depository insurance.

Investments

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Police Pension
Fund’s debt securities as of April 30, 2012:

Investment Maturities in Years

Investment Type Fair Value Less than | 1-5 6-10 Greater than 10
U.S. Treasury obligations § 947478 § 95933 §F  259.804 % 591,741 § -
U.S. agency obligations 6,818,038 - 2,801,180 3,365,014 651,844
Annuities 55,646 55,646 - - -
Corporate Bonds 1,743,746 - 958,462 785,284 -
Municipal bonds 694,812 - 133,903 508,100 52,309
TOTAL $ 10,259,720 % 151,579 § 4,153,349 § 5,250,139 3 704,653
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
b.  Police Pension Fund Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the Police Pension
Fund limits its exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide
liquidity for all reasonably anticipated operating requirements while providing a
reasonable rate of return based on the current market.

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon
maturity. The Police Pension Fund limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily
investing U.S. Treasury or U.S. agency obligations. The U.S. Treasury and U.S,
agency obligations are rated AAA. Municipal bonds are unrated.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to the investment, the Police Pension Fund will not be able to recover
the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its
exposure, the Police Pension Fund’s investment policy requires all security
transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery
versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments held by a third party
custodian and evidenced by safekeeping receipts. The money market mutual funds
are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk that the Police Pension Fund has a high
percentage of its investments invested in one type of investment. As of April 30,
2012, the Police Pension Fund has greater than 5% of its portfolio invested in U.S.
agency obligations (34.40%), corporate bonds (8.80%), equity mutual funds
(39.99%), and negotiable CDs {6.31%).

3.  RECEIVABLES
a.  Property Taxes

Property taxes for 2011 attached as an enforceable lien on January 1, 2011, on
properly values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the
subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared
by the County and issued on or about May 1, 2012, and are payable in two
installments, on or about June 1, 2012 and September 1, 2012. The County collects
such taxes and remits them periodically. The allowance for uncoilectible taxes has
been stated at 1 percent of the tax levy, to reflect actual collection experience. As
the 2011 tax levy is intended to fund expenditures for the 2012-2013 fiscal year,
these taxes are deferred as of April 30, 2012. o
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3.

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

d.

Property Taxes (Continued)

The 2012 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1,
2012, has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30, 2012 as the tax has not
yet been levied by the City and will not be levied untif December 2012 and,

therefore, the levy is not measurable at April 30, 2012.

b. Due from Other Governments and Other Receivables
Nonmajor
General Governmental Total
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Intergovermmenial
Sales tax 3 1,090,666 - % 1,090666
Local use tax 73,247 - 73,247
Income tax 658,769 - 658,769
Motor fuel tax - 42,878 42,878
Telecommunications tax 233,872 - 233,872
Total 2,056,554 42 878 2,099,432
Other receivabies

Franchise fees 79,027 - 79,027
Hotel/motel tax 2,000 - 2,000
Amusement tax 6,754 - 6,754
Utility tax 25,247 - 25,247
Paypal 39 - 39
Deposit with IPBC terminal reserve 177,853 - 177.853
Accounis 64,567 - 64,567
Miscellaneous - 926 926
Total 355,487 "926 356,413

$ 2,412,041 43,804 § 2,455845

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
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4.  CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2012 was as follows:

Balonces
May 1 Balances
Restoted Increases Decreases April 30
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Capilal nssets not being deprecioied
Land § 5535536 3§ - 5 647200 § 5288336
Tolal capital nssets not being depreciated 5,935,536 - - 647,200 5,288,336

Capilal assels being deprecinted

Buildings and improvements 5,981,225 - - 5,981,225
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment 1,854,551 846,139 - 2,700,690
Infrasiructure 12768226 - - 12,768,226
Total copital assels being deprecinted - 20,604,002 846,139 - 21,450,141

Less accurnulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 2,336,547 119,625 - 2,456,172
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment 1,187,463 231,614 - 1,419,077
Infrastructure 7,245,619 496,125 - 7.741,744
Total accumulnted deprecintion 10,769,629 B47.364 - 11,616,993
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 9,834,373 {1,225) - 0,833,148

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 15769509 3§ {1,225) § 647,200 3 15,121,484

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities as
follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

General government 5 51,034
Public safety 161,145
Highways and streets ‘ 635,185

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 5 847364
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4.  CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Baolances Balances
May 1 Increases Decrenses April 30
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 5 100,000 § - 5 - & 100,000
Total capital assets not being depreciated 100,000 - - 100,000
Capilal assets being depreciated .
Buildings ond improvements 6,985,234 - - 6,989,234
Machinery and eguipment 832,615 - - 832,615
Infrastructure 7,984,691 - - 7,984,691
Total copital assels being depreciated 15,806,540 - - 15,806,540
Less accumnulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvements 2,627,456 156,106 ‘ - 2,823,562
Machinery and equipment - - 828,116 . 500 - oo o-B28616e e
Infrustructure 5,032,876 147,933 - 5,180,809
Total accumulated depreciation 8.488.448 344,539 - 8,832,987
Total capitnl assets being depreciaied, net 7,318,092 (344,539) - 6,973,553
BUSINESS-TYFPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS,NET § 7418092 % (344,5319) § - 3 7,073,553

5.  RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction .of assels; errors and omissions; employee health; natural disasters; illnesses of
employees; and injuries to the City’s employees.

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA)

The City participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA). IRMA
is an organization of municipalities and special districts in northeastern llinois that have
formed an association under the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperations Statute to pool
their risk management needs. JRMA administers a mix of self-insurance and commercial
insurance  coverages; property/casualty and workers’ compensation claim
administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim administration;
extension risk management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk
information system and financial reporting service for its members.

The City’s paymenis to IRMA are displayed on the financial statements as
expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $2,500 of
each occurrence, and IRMA has a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance at
various amounts above that level.

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the
member on the Board ol Directors. The City does not exercise any control over the
activities of IRMA beyond its representation on the Board of Directors.
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5.  RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) (Continued)

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member”s eligible
revenue as defined in the by-laws of IRMA and experience modification factors based on
past member loss experience. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any .deficit of
IRMA attributable to a membership year during which they were a member. Supplemental
contributions may be required to fund these deficits. The City is aware of no additional
contributions due to IRMA as of April 30, 2012,

Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC)

The City participates in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC).

IPBC is a public entity risk peol-established by certain units of local government in IHineis- -~ - - - --

to administer some or all of the personnel benefit programs (primarily medical, dental, and
life insurance coverage) offered by these members to their officers and employees and to
the officers and employees of certain governmental, quasi governmental, and nonprofit
public service entities.

The IPBC receives, processes, and pays such claims as may come within the benefit
program of each member. Management consists of a Board of Directors comprised of one
appointed representative from each member. In addition, there are two officers; a Benefit
Administrator and a Treasurer. The City does not exercise any control over the activities
of the IPBC beyond its representation on the Board of Directors.

6. LONG-TERM DEBT
a.  General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued
for general government activities. In addition, general obligation bonds have been
issued to refund general obligation bonds. General obligation bonds are direct
obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

A summary of changes in long-term debt reported in the governmental activities of
the City for the year ended April 30, 2012 is as follows:
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Governmental Activities

Fund
Debt

Issue Retired by

Balnnces
Maoy 1

Issuances Retirements

Balances
April 30

Due Within
One Yenor

$1,400,000 Taxoble General
Obligntion Bonds, Series
2007A are due in annual
instollments (beginning
December 15, 2008) mnging
from $320,000 10 $380,000
with interest from 4.875% to
5.000%. The Jnst payment is
due December 15, 2011, General
$2,600,000 General Cbligation
Bonds, Series 2007B are due
in nonual installments
{beginning December 13,
2012} ranging from 3390,000
1o $475,000 with interest ot
4.000%. The Jast payment is
due December 15, 2017.°

$2,370,000 General Obligation
Bonds, Scries 2008 are duc in
annun] instaliments {beginning
January 1, 2009) ranging from’
$115,000 to 3$190,000 with
interest from 3.50% 1o 4.00%.
The last poyment doe is
January 1, 2024,

Capital
Improvement

TOTAL GOYERNMENTAL
BONDED DEBT

Business-Type Activities

Fund
Debt
Retired

1ssue by

5 380,000 S - 3

Debt Service

380,000

2,600,000 - -

1,990,000 - 125,000

2,600,000 390,000

1,865,000 130,000

$ 4,970,000 3 - $ 505,000

- § 4,465,000 3 520,000

Balances

Moy 1 Issuances Retirements

Due Within
One Year

Bolonces
April 30

$3,900,000 General Obligation
Water Bonds, Series 2006 are due
in annual instollments (beginning
December 15, 2007) anging from
$60,000 1o $300,000 with intcrest
from 4.10% to 4.30%. The last
payment is due on December 15,
2025, Water
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

BONDED DEBT

§ 3,590,000 5 - ¥

165,000 § 3225000 %

170,000

§ 3,390,000 5 - 5

165,000 S 3,225,000 5§

170,000
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6.

LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

b.

Installment Contracts

1)  On October 25, 2007, the City entered into an installment contract with
Citizens Financial Bank to finance the purchase of three public works vehicles
in the amount of $360,038 with $50,038 due upon delivery. This contract was
retired during the year ended Apnl 30, 2012.

2)  On November 1, 2008, the City entered into an installment contract to finance
the purchase of public works vehicles and equipment in the amount of
$235,958 with an interest rate of 3.75%. This contract was retired during the
year ended April 30, 2012.

"3) " On September 19, 2011, the City entered into an installment contract with

Hinsdale Bank & Trust Co. to finance the purchase of public safety vehicles
and equipment in the amount of $483,466 with an interest rate of 1.50%.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activities . Business-Type Activities
Fiscal General Obligation Bonds General Obligation Bonds
Year Principat Interest Totat Principal- Interest “Total--
2013 $ 520000 § 176,994 % 696,194 £ 170,000 § 135508 $ 305,908
2014 545,000 155,719 700,759 180,000 128,896 308,896
2015 565,000 134,256 699,256 185,000 121,472 306,472
2016 585,000 112,006 697,006 - 195,000 113,840 308,840
2017 615,000 88,969 703,969 205,000 105,650 310.650
2018 635,000 64,563 699,563 215,000 97,040 312,040
2019 165,000 39,363 204,363 220,000 88,010 308,010
2020 170,000 32,969 202,969 230,000 78,770 308,770
2021 175,000 26,381 201,381 -240,000 69,110 309,110
2022 185,000 19,600 204,600 255,000 59,030 314,030
2023 190,000 12,200 202,200 265,000 48,320 313,320
2024 115,000 4,600 119,600 275,000 37,058 312,058
2025 - - - 290,000 25,370 315370
2026 - - - 300,000 12,900 312,900

TOTAL § 4465000 $ 866,820 § 5331,820 % 3225000 § 1,121374 § 4,3463M

Govermnmental Activities

Fiscal : Inslallment Contracl - 2011
Year Principal Interest Total
2013 - 3 160,500 3 .. 4,532 3. 165032
2014 160,500 4,845 165,345
2015 162,466 2,437 164.903
TOTAL 5 483466 3 11,814 5 495280
-32-
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
d. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities during fiscal year

2012:
Balances Baolonces Due Within
May 1 Additions Reducticns April 30 One Year
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES ‘
General obligation bonds 5 4,970,000 % - 5 505,000 $ 4,465,000 § 520,000
Installment contract - 2007 73,009 - 73,009 - -
Installment contract - 2008 57,961 - 57,961 - -
Installment contract - 2011 - 483,466 - 483,466 160,500
Unamariized bond discount - {1,182) - (1,182) - -
Unamortized bond preminm 22,878 - 3,268 19,610 -
Compensated absences paynble® 540,162 61,265 100,025 501,332 75,200
Net pension obligation* 35,950 10,943 - 46,893 -
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES § 5698778 % 555,674 % 738,151 § 5516301 § 755,700
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
General obligntion bonds $ 3,390,000 3 - 5 165000 § 3,225000 % 170,000
Unomenrtized bond discount (11,408} - (789) (10,619) -
Compensated nbsences paynblc 15,627 33,150 2,344 . 46,433 6,965
Ne! pension obligation 3.994 1.216 - 5,210 : -
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES § 3398213 §% 34,366 § 166,555 § 3,266,024 § 176,965

*The General Fund has typically been used to liquidate the compensated absences
liability and the net pension obligation.

€. Line of Credit

On February 18, 2010, the City entered into a line of credit to cover any shortfalls in
cash. The maximwum amount that can be drawn down is $1,250,000. Amounts
drawn under the line of credit at April 30, 2012 totaled $0. The line of credit was not
used in fiscal year 2012.
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7. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Transfers between funds at April 30, 2012 consist of the following:

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
General ) - § 3,000,000
Capital Improvements 3,005,946
Nonmajor Govémmental - 5,946
TOTAL ' $ 3005946 § 3,005,946

The purpose of the transfer is as follows:

«  $3,000,000 transferred from the General Fund to the Capital ]rnprovements Fund for
capital projects. This transfer will not be repaid.

8. COMMITMENTS
DuPage Water Commission
The City has committed to purchase water from the DuPage Water Commission (the

Commission). The City expects to pay the following minimum amounts based on the
Commission’s debt service requirements:

Fiscal
Year
Ending
April 30 Amount
2013 $ 284,904
2014 : 284,904
2015 284,904
2016 284,904
2017 234,504

These amounts have been calculated using the City’s current allocation percentage of
3.98%. In future years, this allocation percentage will be subject to change.

9.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a. Litigation

The City is not aware of any pending or threatening litigation.

-34 -
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9.

10.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

b. DuPage Water Commission

The City’s water supply agreement with the Commission provides that each
customer is liable for its proportionate share of any costs arising from defaulis in
payment obligations by other customers.

c.  Economic Incentive Agreement

The City entered into an agreement in April 2012 with two local businesses wherein
the City will rebate up to a net present value of $4,000,000 of incremental sales tax
revenue, discounted at 8.15%. The agreement is contingent upon the completion of
an expansion project by businesses.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The City contributes to two defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal -
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system
and the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit
levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions for both plans are governed by
ILCS and can only be amended by the 1llinois General Assembly. None of the pension
plans issue separate reports on the pension plans. However, IMRF does issue a publicly
available report that includes financial statements and supplementary information for the
plan as-a whole;-but not for individual empleyers. Thatrepert can be obtained from IMRE,
2211 York Read, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523.

a.  Plan Descriptions
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

All employees (other than those covered by the Police Pension Plan) hired in
positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly standard must be enrolled
in IMRF as participating members. IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits.
Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For Tier 1
employees, pension benefits vest afier eight years of service. Participating members
who retire at ape 55 (reduced benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for
life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of
credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter. Employees hired on
or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees,
pension benefits vest after 10 years of service. Participating members who retire at
ape 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years of credited
service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an.
amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited
service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)
1llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Continued)

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all
other requirements are established by state statute. Participating members are
required to contribute 4.5% of their annual salary to IMRF. The City is required to
contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund IMRF as specified by statute.
The employer required contribution for the calendar year ended December 31, 2011
was 12.58% of covered payroll. The City’s contribution for the calendar year 2011
was 11.89% of covered payroll.

Police Pension Plan

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although this is a
single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer
contribution levels are governed by 1llinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1) and
may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. The City accounts for the plan as a
pension trust fund. At April 30, 2012, the Police Pension Plan membership consisted
of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not _
yet receiving them ' -
Current employees
Vested
Nonvested

TOTAL

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefils as well as death and disability
benefits. Tier 1 employees (those hired as a police officer prior to January 1, 2011)
attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are
entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary
attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last
day, whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such
salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less than 20 years
of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The
monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after
January 1, 1977 shall be increased annua!]y, following the first anniversary date of

" retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3.00% of the
original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter.
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
a.  Plan Descriptions (Continued)
Police Pension Plan {Continued)

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after Janvary 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older with 10 or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the
last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Police officers’ salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of ¥ of the annual change in the Consumer Price
Index or 3.00% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of
such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a
maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least 10 years may retire at
or afier age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., 4% for each month under 55).
The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60
on the January 1% after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the
pension starting date, whichever is later. Non-compounding increases occur
annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3.00% or ¥ of the
change in the Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the
Police Pension Plan. I an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary and the
administrative costs. Effective January 1, 2011, the City has until the year 2040 to
fund 90% of the past service costs for the Police Pension Plan. For the year ended
April 30, 2011, the City’s contribution was 36.0% of covered payroll.

b. ° Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employee and employer contributions are recognized when due pursuant to formal
commitments as well as statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
Method Used to Value Investments
Investments are reporied at fair value. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of fixed-income securities are recognized
on the transaction date.
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

b.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (Continued)

Administrative Costs

Administrative costs for the Police Pension Plan are financed primarily through

investment earnings.

Annual Pension Costs

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

1ilinois
Municipal Police
Retirement Pension
Actuarial valuation date December 31, 2009 April 30,2010
Actuarial cost method Entry-age Normal  Entry-age Normal
Asset valuation method 5 Year Smobthed Market
Market
Amortization method Level Percentage  -Level Percentage-
of Payroll of Payroll
Amortization period 30 Years, Open 23 Years, Closed
Significant actuarial assumptions _
a) Rate of return on 7.50% 7.00%
present and future assets Compounded Compunded
Annually " Annually
b) Projected salary increase - 4.00% 5.50%
attributable to inflation - Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually
c) Additional projected 40% to 10.00% N/A
salary increases -
seniority/merit
d) Postretirement benefit increases 3.00% 3.00%
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
c.  Annual Pension Costs (Continued)
Employer annual pension cost {(APC), actual contributions, and the net pension

obligation (asset) (NPO) are as follows. The NPO (asset) is the cumulative
difference between the APC and the contributions actually made.

For Illinois
Fiscal Municipal Police
Year Retirement Pension
Annual pension cost 2010 $ 30338 $ 938,901
(APC) 2011 365,099 1,102,913
2012 297,056 1,173,219
Actual contribution 2010 $ 303,386 § 949373
2011 335,252 1,113,781
2012 284897 1,185,029
Percentage of APC contributed 2010 100.00% 101.12%
' 2011 91.82% 100.59%
2012 95.91% 101.01%
NPO (asset) 2010 b3 - § (53,205)
2011 39,944 (64,073)
2012 52,103 (75,883)

The NPO (asset) as of April 30, 2012 has been calculated as follows:

llinois

Municipal Police

Retirement Pension
Annual required contribution : $ 296202 3 1,174,292
Interest on net pension obligation 2,995 (4,485)
Adjustment to annual required contributions (2,141) 3,412
Annual pension cost - 297,056 1,173,219
Contributions made 284 897 1,185,029
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligalion (asset) 12,159 (11,810)
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning ol year 39,944 {64,073)
NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET),

END OF YEAR : R b 52,103 ' § - (75,883)
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10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)
d. Funded Status

The funded status of the plans as of April 30, 2012 were as follows:

Nlinois

Municipal Palice

Retirement Pension
Actuarial valuation date December 31,2011  April 30, 2012
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) i 8,414,833 § :
Actuarial value of plan assets 5,971,006
Unfunded actuaria} accrued liability (UAAL) 2,443,827
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 70.96% %
Covered payroll (active plan members) Y 2,579,318 §
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 94.75% %%

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the funded status of the plans are the
same actuarial assumptions used to determine the employer APC of the plans as
disclosed in Note 10.c.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the ARC of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to financial statements, presents multi-year trend information that
shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the AALSs for benefits.

See schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to financial statements for additional information
related to the funded status of the plan.

11. LEASE AGREEMENTS
As of April 30, 2012, the City has rental agreements with seven retailers for the rental of

business space of the strip mall property at 7515 South Cass. The seven retailers will pay
the City a combined total of $13,300 on a month-to-month basis.

-40 -
-66“




Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued})

12.

13.

14.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City allows employees, who retire through one of the City’s two pension plans
disclosed in Note 10, the option to continue in the City’s health insurance plan as required
by ILCS, but the retiree pays the full premium for the health insurance. This has not
created an implicit subsidy as defined by GASB Statement No. 45 (GASB S-45),
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefils Other
Than Pensions, as the City’s health insurance plan is considered a community rated plan.
In addition, the City has no explicit subsidy as defined in GASB 5-45.

RESTATEMENT

The net assets of povernmental activities has been restated by ($1,377,800) as of May 1,

. 2011 to correct a prior period error in recording sale of land.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On July 12, 2012, the City issued $2,810,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2012 to advance refund the General Obligation Water Bonds, Series 2006. The bonds are
payable in annual installments of $20,000 to $290,000 every December 15 starting
December 15, 2012 through 2025. Interest is paid semiannually at 2.00% to 3.50%.
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CHANGES IN FUND BAILLANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

{With Prior Year Actual)

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses, permits and fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
lnvestmenl income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Curent

General povernment
Highways and streets
Public safety

" Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Installment contract proceeds
Transfers in (out)
Proceeds [rom sale of asscts

Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

(See independent auditor's report.}
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2012
Original Variance
and Final Qver 2011
Budget Actuoal {Under) -Acctual
$ 4,364,897 § 4348505 § {16,392} § 4275179
895,650 932,158 36,508 1,007,928
6,374,745 7,133,538 758,793 6,800,062
430,492 025,048 494,556 661,340
10,000 21,778 11,778 18,675
260,000 405,300 145,300 285,730
12,335,784 13,766,327 1,430,543 13,048,914
1,643,905 1,573,079 (70,826) 1,516,220
1,802 245 1,762,107 (130,138} 1,488,535
7.575,391 7,753,703 178,312 6,780,838
371,738 510,970 139,232 494,146
27,262 27,262 - 49,105
11,510,541 11,627,121 116,580 10,328,844
825,243 2,139,206 1,313,963 2,720,070
- 483,466 483,466 -
(3,000,000)  (3,000,000) - (1,600,000)
- 24,444 24,444 02,615
{3,000,000) {2,492,090) 507,910 {1,507 385)
5 (2,174,757) (352,884) § 1,821,873 1,212,685
4,461,410 3,248,725
$ 4,108,526 b 4,461,410
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

@) ' UAAL
(2) Unfunded (OAAL)
Actvarial {Overfunded) as a
Actuarial (D) Accrued (3) AAL Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded (UAAL) - (5) of Covered
Date Value of (AAL) Ratio (CAAL) Covered Payroll
December31 =~ Assels Eniry-Age {1}/ (2) (-(1) Payroll {(4)/(5)
2006 $ 7,274,695 3 8,153,033 89.23% $ 878338 § 3,032,211 28.97%
2007 7,840,978 B.665,653 - - 90.48% 824,675 3,171,262 - 26.00% -
2008 6,094,965 8,110,781 75.15% 2,015,816 3,101,518 64.99%
2009 5,596,856 8,049,960 659.53% 2,453,104 3,169,693 77.39%
2010 6,345,481 3,800,442 72.10% 2,454,961 2,962,084 32.88%

2011 5,971,006 8,414,833 70.96%  2.443.827 2,579,318 94.75%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

@ TAAL

Actuarial G asa
Actuarial )] Accrued (3) Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Actuarial Liability Funded AAL (3) of Covered
Date Value of {AAL) Ratio (UAAT) Covered Payroll
April 30 Assets  Entry-Age /(2 - Payroll (D /(5)
2007 § 13,686,772 § 24,412,636 36.06% § 10,725,864 § 2,897,550 370.17%
2008 14,711,377 26,025,5 10 56.53% 11,314,133 2,839,516 398.45%
2009 7 14,488,861 ° 28,067,625 51.62% 13,578,764 3,059,620 = 443.81%
2010 16,866,119 30,626,124 55.07% 13,760,005 3,282,075 419.25%
2011 18,838,718 31,056,795 60.66% 12,218,077 3,085,788 395.43%
2012 #DIV/0! - ' - #DIV/0!

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

Fiscal
Year

- 2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

Annual
Required
Employer Contribution
Contributions (ARC)
$ 363,865 $ 363,865
371,672 ‘ 371,672
306,740 306,740
303,386 303,386
335,252 364,883
284,897 296,202

(See independent auditor's report.)
- 7 2 -

Percentage
Contributed

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

91.88%

96.18%




CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOI1S

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discusssion Purposes Only

Fiscal
Year

2007
2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

Annual
Required
Employer Contribution
Contributions (ARC)

3 724,300 3 724,265
859,300 807,108
937,066 527,983
949,373 939,778

1,113,781 1,103,909
1,185,029 1,174,292

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Percentage
Contributed

100.00%

106.47%

100.98%

101.02%

100.89%

100.91%




Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30, 2012

BUDGETS

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all governmental funds.
Budget amounts are as originally adopted by the City Council. All annual appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end. As the City does not budget for its Drug Seizure Fund, it is not
. legally required to do so, budget to actual schedules are not presented for the Drug Seizure
Fund.

Prior to April 30, the City Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating

~ budget for the fiscal year commencing May 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain
taxpayer comments. Formal budgetary integrations is employed as a management control
device during the year of the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds.

The City is authorized to change budgeted amounts within any fund; however, revision
must be approved by two-thirds of the members of the City Council. No revisions can be
made increasing the budget unless funding is available for the purpose of the revision. The
legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally
exceed appropriations) is the fund level.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City
Administrator is authorized to transfer budget amounts between departments within any
fund; however, the City Council must approve revisions that alter the total expenditures of
any fund.

EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES OVER BUDGET

Fund . Budget Actual

General $ 11,510,541 § 11,627,121

47 -
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The General Fund was established to account for all revenues and expenditures
which are not accounted for in other funds. This is the largest fund of the City, providing for the
majority of the City’s revenues, expenditures, and services. The General Fund-is supported - - - -
predominately with taxes, licenses, and fees. It funds the operations of the City’s Police Department,
Community Development Department, Mayor/City Council, Sireet Department, and Administration.

Capital Improvements Fund - The Capital Improvement Fund was established to account for the
proceeds of the Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2007A and the expenditures for the
related capital projects.

_75_




CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINCIS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

{With Prior Year Actual)
2012
Criginal and Varance
Final Cver 2011
Budget Actual (Under) Actual
TAXES
Property taxes - current h 2,000,287 § 2,018,860 % 18,573 § 2,001,191
Road and bridge tax 185,000 187,391 - 2,39 181,771
Municipal utility tax 1,040,000 1,057,889 17,889 1,120,830
Telecommunicalion tax 998,000 953,775 (44,225) 826,674
Amusement tax 105,000 92,249 (12,751) 104,205
Hotel/motel tax 31,000 32,451 1,451 33,543
‘Replacement tax 56100 ° 75,890 280 6,965
Total taxes 4,364 897 4,348.505 {16,392} 4,275,179
LICENSES, PERMITS, AND FEES
Business licenses 44000 39,381 (4,619) 40,110
Liquor licenses 42,650 53,000 10,350 45,650
Contractors licenses 15,000 18,710 3,710 21,090
Court fines -190,000 142,598 (47,402) 169,576
Ordinance fines 35,000 28,860 (6,140) 38,258
Building permits and fees 60,000 74.573 14,573 131,982
Cable TV franchise fees 300,000 313,671 13,671 297,317
PEG fees AT&T - 12,339 12,339 10,811
NICOR franchise [ees 40,000 31,772 (8,228) 40985
Public hearing fees 5,000 7,907 2,907 6,804
Elevator inspections 3,500 5,090 1,590 5,087
Public improvement permit fees - 250 250 - 5,150
Engineering fee reimbursements 50,000 40,122 (9,878) 53,387
Legal fee reimbursements 500 - (500) -
DUI technology fines 10,000 8,435 (1,565) 3,353
Police special service 100,000 155,400 55,400 137,570
Stormwater management fees : - 50 50 798
Total licenses, permits, and [ees 895,650 932,158 36,508 1,007,928
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
State income laxes 1,589,971 1,813,435 223,464 1,841,183
Local use tax 234,774 322,118 87,344 357,258
Sales lax 4,550,000 4,942,309 392,309 4,582,422
DADC administrative lees - - - 10,001
Grants - 46,754 46,754 8,117
Drug seizure receipls - 8,922 8,922 1,081
Total intergovernmental 6,374,745 7,133,538 758,793 6,800,062

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Centinued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
{With Prier Year Actual)

2012
Original and Variance
Final Over 201
Budget Actual {Under) Actual
CHARGES FOR SERVICES :
Towing fees hN - b 94,533 § 94,5333 5§ -
Booking fees - - 2,400 2,400 -
Police report/prints 4,300 6,673 2,175 5,887
Inspection/tap on/permits - 975 975 3,875
Rents 323,992 385,100 61,108 446,341
Other reimbursements 100,000 274,597 174,597 129,508
Residential concrete réimbursement - - 145,123 145,123 © 535,736
Reimbursement - rear yard drain - 1,500 1,500 -
Maintenance reimbursements 2,000 3,915 1,615 4,331
Mail box reimbursement i - 2,350 2,350 3,110
Sales of wood chips - 4,430 4,430 4,960
Operations revenue ‘- 3,450 3,450 7,572
Total charges for services 430,492 925,048 494,556 661,340
INVESTMENT INCOME
Investment income 10,000 21,778 11,778 18,675
Total investment income 10,000 21,778 11,778 18,675
MISCELLANEOUS
Waler share 5 250,000 % 250,000 F - 5 230,000
D.A RE. contributions : - 500 500 500
Reimbursement - workers compensalion - 81,044 81,044 -
Miscellaneous 10,000 73,756 63,756 35,230
Total miscellaneous . 260,000 405,300 143,300 285,730
TOTAL REVENUES $ 127335784 § 13,766,327 3 1,430,543 & 13,048,914

(See independent auditor's report.)
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

{With Prior Year Actual)

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administrotion
Personnel services
Solarics
Overtime
Social security
Medicare
IMRF
Medicellife insurance
Supplemental pensions

Total personnkel services -

Materials and supplics
Dues and subscriptions
Liability insurance
Legal notices
Maintenanee - building
Maintennnce - equipment
Maintenance - prounds
Maintenance - vehicles
Postoge/mailings
Printing and forms
Public relations
Rent - equipments
Supplies =oflice
Supplics - other
Training and education
Travel/meetings
Telephone
Utililies
Gas ond oil
Vehicle

Total materials and supplies

Contractual serviccs
Audit
Consulting/professional
Contingency
Janitorial services

Total contractval services

Total administration

City Council
Personnel services
Salarics
Social security
Medicare
IMRF

Total persannel services

2012
Original nnd Varinnce
' Final Over 2011
Budpel Actual (LInder) Aciugl

- 422,000 § 435,145 § 13,145 § 428,006
4,000 - (4,000} 42
23,600 23,896 296 23,443
6,000 6,376 376 6,105
49,500 54,880 5,380 48,388
68,825 60,015 (8.810) 67,201
23,000 24,253 1,253 22,296
- T 596,925 604,565 7,640 595481
2,450 2,944 494 1,825
52,500 52,379 {521} 50,743
8,000 8427 427 6,131
11,000 6,354 (4,646) 12,097
13,000 7,778 (5.222) 12,470
7,000 799 (6,201) 5,826
- 170 170 1,847
5,200 3,882 {1,318} 2,582
4,000 3,679 (321) 1,282
28,000 26,527 {1,473) 41,646
2,400 2,340 (60) 1,755
11,000 9,722 —(15278) 9,441
3,000 503 {2,497) 671
4,500 378 (3,622} 482
2,000 240 {1,760} 133
61,500 57,716 (3,784) 53,602
3,500 3,299 (201) 3,11
7.900 6,741 {1,159) 6,594

2.000 - (2,000) -
229350 194378 (34,972) 212298
11,650 11,675 25 16,575
93,950 82,239 {11,711) 79,204
10,000 3,622 {6,378} 7,898
16,500 13,002 (3,498) 14,184
132,100 110,538 {21,562) 117,861
958,375 909,181 {18,894) 925,640
42,745 42,450 {295} 42750
2,660 2,632 (28) 2,651
620 616 4) 620
1,900 36 {1,864) 1,492
47,925 45,734 {2,191) 17,513

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continucd})
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
{With Prior Year Actual)
2012
Originat ond Varjance
Final Over 2011
Budget Actoa] {Under) Actunl
GENERAL GOVERNMENT {Continued}
City Council (Continued)
Materinls and supplies
Bourd and commissions 3 2,500 3 1,246 § (1,254) § 1,323
Cable operations 2,500 749 (1,751) -
Dues and subscriptions - - - 43
Linbility insurance 42,060 43,2381 1,221 15,175
Public relations 1,500 1,143 {357} 5714
Supplies - office - - - 51
Travel/meetings 750 516 (234) 70
Total moterials and supplies o T © 749,310 46,935 ~(2,375) 17,236
Contmctual services
Consulting/professional 27,000 24393 {2,607) 25418
Tolley contracts 900 64 (836) 354
Tota) contractual services ) 27,900 24,457 (3,443 25,772
Total city council ) 125,135 117,126 (8,009) 90,521
Community development
Personnel services
Salarics 270,500 272,560 2,060 268,383
QOverlime 1,000 - (1,000) -
“Social security 15,000 14,862 {138y 14,480
Medicare 3,950 3,827 (123) 3,785
IMRF 32,100 33,024 924 29,964
Medicalllife insurance 37,000 36,105 (B93) 36,330
Supplemental pensions 3,600 3323 277y 2,400
Total personnel services 363,150 363,701 551 355,342
Maierials and supplies
Boards and commissions 2,400 2,043 (357 1,975
Dues and subscriptions ’ 750 453 . {297) 440
Liabilities tnsurance 46,750 35,427 {11,323) 20,719
Maintenance - vehicles 1,900 107 {1,793) 475
Postape/mailings - 1,222 1,222 930
Prinfing and [orms 2,600 792 (1,808) 883
Supplics - office 450 21 (429) 282
Training and educational : 500 510 10 95
Travel/meetings 400 80 {320) 40
Gas and oil 1,995 1,633 (362) 1,643
Tota! materials and supplics 57,745 42 288 (15,457) 27,482
Coniraciunl services
Ceonsulting/professional 28,500 33,062 4,562 40,579
Consulting/professional reimbursable 50,500 67,276 16,776 49,202
Tola! contractual services 79,000 100,338 21338 - 89,781
Total cemmunity development 499 805 506,327 6,432 472,605

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL {Conlinucd)
GENERAL FUND
For the Ycar Ended April 30, 2012
{With Prior Year Actual)
2012
Original and Variance
Final Over : 2011
Budpet Actunl (Under} Achal
GENERAL GOVERNMENT {Continued)
Business district
Personnel services
Liability insurance b 5500 % 3,459 § (2,041) 5 . 5,500
Totaol professional services 5,500 -3,459 (2,041} 5,500
Contractual scrvices
Maintenance - building - - - i2
Maintennnce - grounds 35,000 21,746 {13,254} 11,183
Utilities 2,500 10,373 7.878 4,198
" “Maintenance - equipment - : : : 17500 . - 4,562 (12,938) - - 6,561 -
Totn) contracal services 55,000 36,686 (18,314) 21,954
Tatnl business district ) A 60,500 40,145 {20,355) 27.454
Total gencral government 1.643.905 1,573,079 (70,826) 1,516,220
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS
Public works
Persomnel services
Salaories 483,400 594 397 110,997 477416
Overlime 95,000 9,448 (85,352) 76,862
Sacial seeurity 56,045 35,788 {20,257} 53,148
~~Medicare 13,110 B.469- (4,647) 11,965
IMRF 101,500 71,3719 (30,121 99,488
Medicallife insurance 153,000 126,374 (26,626) 115,391
Supplemental pensions 2,500 2,677 177 5,308
Total personnel services 004,555 848,532 (56,023) 839,578
Malerials and supplics
Linbility insurance 72,672 55,267 (17,405) 48,553
Maintenance - building 31,166 18,595 {12,571) 13,917
Maintenance - equipment - 21,050 27,772 6,722 25,308
Muintenance - vehicles - : 23.000 24358 © 1,358 23,533
Postape/mailings 1,000 1,197 197 820
Rent - equipment 25,500 18,044 (7,456} 1917}
Supplics - office 2,300 1,918 (382) 995
Supplies - pther 35,500 35,144 (356) 39,428
Small tools ond equipment 15,250 14,751 (499) 5,358
Truining and education 4,050 712 (3,338) 1,971
Unifonns 6,750 3,547 {2,803) 4,033
LHilitics 3,650 3,029 (621) 3,407
Gns and oil 57,350 65,023 8,573 62,245
Total materials and supplies 299,238 270,657 (28.581) 248 739
Canlractual services
Consultinp/professional 419,000 16,423 {2,577) 73353
Forestry 36,960 27,438 {9,522) 61,545
Street light operation and maintenance 80,000 87,746 7,746 85,856
Tree trim - removal 90,490 © 98,405 (1,085 16,214

(This schedule is continued on the following pages.)
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Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Confinued)
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
(With Pricr Year Actual)
2012
Original and Variance
Finul Qver 2011
Budget Aclup} {Under) Actual
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS {Conlinucd)
Public works (Continued)
Contractual services (Continued)
Residential concrete program $ - 5 146,455 % 146455 3 51,383
Street sweeping 29419 18,380 {11,039} 18,391
Mosquito abotement - 41,500 40,887 {613) 40,887
Drainage projects 40,000 30918 (9.082) 10,129
Totnl conlractun! services 376,369 496 652 120,283 ) 358,258
Capilnl outlay
Equipment -~ ° T T ~ 312,083 146,266 {165,817) - ----~ 41,9460
Tolal capilo] cotlay 312,083 146,266 (165,817) 41,960
Total public works 1,892 245 1,762,107 (130,138) 1,488,535
Tolal highways and strects 1,892 245 1,762,107 {130,138) 1,488,535
PUBLIC SAFETY
Police depariment
Personnel services
Salaries 428,573 427,123 (1,450) 421,179
Salaries - officers : 3,428,441 3,440,754 12,313 3,204,198
QOvertime . 500,983 491,446 {9,537) 428,341
Socialsccurity 29,000 27,018 (1,982) 24,493
Medicare 55,000 51,193 {3,807) 49,549
IMRF 49,000 54,112 5112 41,699
Medicallife insurance 483,000 419,350 {63,650) 420,465
Police pension 1,174,292 1,185,029 10,737 1,113,655
Supplementaol pensions : 52,800 48,495 (4,305) 49.042
Total personnel services 6,201,089 6,144,520 {56,569) 5,752,621
Matcrials and supplics
Animal conirol . 2,000 1,049 {951) 285
Augxiliary police . 9,600 4,149 {5,451) 776
Boords and commissions 27,500 440 (27,060} 1,642
Dues and subscriptions 4,745 3,681 {1,004) 3,356
Investigation and equipment 62,739 20,760 {41,979) 36,744
Liability insurance 252,800 201,097 (51,703} 186,823
Maintenance - building 44,175 47,375 3,200 24,913
Mainienance - equipment 15,500 10,576 (4,924) 76,140
Muintenance - vehicles 38,000 50,347 12,347 52,451
Postage/mailings 3,000 3,120 120 2272
Printing and forms 3,000 3,524 524 1,326
Public relations 10,750 5,658 (5,092) 9,306
Rent - equipment 6,600 1,628 (4,972} 1,507
Supplies - office 7,500 6,091 {1,409) 6,807
Supplics - other - - - 113
Training and education 25,015 16,704 (8,311) 11,106
Travel/meetings- -~ 11,100 5,852 (3,248) - +5,44]

{This schedule is continued on the following page.)
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINQIS

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

{With Prior Year Actual)

PUBLIC SAFETY (Continued)
Police department {Continued)
Materials and supplies {Conlinued)
Telephone
Uniforms
Utilities
Gas and oil
Totol moterials and supplies
Contractual services
Consulting/prolessionnl
Contractunl services
Darien orea dispatch
Dumeg/finU/child center

Total contractual services

Capital outlay
Equipment

Total capila] outlay
Tota! police department
Total pubtic safety
DEBT SERVICE
Principal
Interest

Total debt service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

2012
Original ond Varionce
Final Over 2011
Budpet Actual {Under) Actual
5 14388 § 14,567 $ i79 § 10,688
71,485 31,836 (39,64%) 43,956
12,000 5,283 (6,717) 6,625
120,000 145,421 25,421 113,000
741,897 579,158 (162,739} 595,477
350,015 349,101 (914) 10,015
24,000 24304 304 -
- - - 396,122
26,240 26,610 370 26,240
400,255 400,015 (240} 432,377
232,150 630,010 397,860 363
232,150 630,010 397,860 363
7,575,391 7,753,703 178,312 6,780,838
7.,5757351 7,7537703 178,312 -6,780,838"
371,738 510,970 139,232 494,146
27.262 27,262 - 49,105
399.000 538,232 139,232 543,251
§ 11510541 § 11,627,12) § 116,580 § 10,328,844

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUIND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

Far the Year Ended April 30, 2012
(With Prior Year Actunl)

2012
Original and Varinnce
Final Over 2011
Budget Actual {Under) Actual
REVENUES
Tuoxes 3 200,770 § 202,256 § 1,486 § 200,770
Intergovernmentaf - 150,000 150,000 24,177
Invesiment income - 18,684 18,684 4,639
Total revenues 200,770 370,240 170,170 229 586
EXPENDITURES
- Copitd} outlay - - : 2,186,328 2,082,177 (104,151) 2,102,673
Debt service
Principal pnyments 200,770 125,000 (75,770} 120,000
Interest ond fiscal chnrges ) - 76,569 76,569 80,769
Totol expenditures 2,387,098 2283746 (103,352) 2,303,442
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENLUES :
OVER EXPENDITURES (2,186,328) (1,912, 806) 273,522 (2,073,856)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 3,000,000 3,005,946 5,946 1,673,285
Proceeds from sale ol nssets - 656,875 656,875 -
Total other fmancing sources (uses) 3,000,000 3,662,821 662,821 1,673,285
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 813,672 1,750,015 5 936,343 {400,571)
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 114,693 515,264
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 § 1,864,708 3 114,693

(See independent audilor's report.)
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Preliminany and Tentative
For Discus sion Purposes Only

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Motor Fuel Tax Fund - The Motor Fuel Tax fund is used to account for state-shared motor fuel

tax revenues that are legally restricted to maintenance and construction of streets, sidewalks,
alleys, and signals. ’

Special Service Area Fund - A special service area (SSA) is created to fund improvements which
benefit an identifiable segment of the City, with a special property tax levied on and restricted to
the benefited properties. SSA #1 was created to handle maintenance of the wetlands in the Tara
Hill development.

Drug Seizure Fund - When property or money is seized by the Police Department in relation to
violations of drug laws, the Department is entitled to receive a portion of the property or money
to offset the cost of drug enforcement. Requirements which govern forfeiture activities require
these monies be segregated and restricted for drug enforcement purposes.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the proceeds of the General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2007B which are restricted for expenditures for the related capital
projects.

Road Improvement Fund - The Road Improvement Fund is used to account for the revenue
assigned to expenditures related to road improvement.
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINQIS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

{With Prior Year Actual)
2012
Original Variance
and Final Over 2011
Budget Actual {(Under) Actual
REVENUES .
Intergovernmental
MFT allotment % 555250 § 659,569 § 104319 § 613,865
Investment income - 954 264 676
Miscellaneous - - - 102,552
Total revenues 555,250 660,533 105,283 717,093
EXPENDITURES
Current
Highways and streels
Commodities 286,030 238,649 (47,381} 292 359
Wages 300,000 241,455 (58,545) 295,000
Capital Qutlay - 51,595 51,593 -
Total expenditures 586,030 531.699 (54,331) 587,359
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 (30,780} 128,834 § 159,614 129,734
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), MAY 1] 80,990 (48,744)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), APRIL 30 $ 209,824 b 80,990

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE COF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

(With Prior Year Actual)
2012
Original and Variance
Final Over 2011
Budget Actual {Under) Actual
REVENUES
Taxes -5 5,000 % 5,052 § 532 8 7,133
Investment income - 149 149 86
Total revenues 5,000 5,201 201 7,219
EXPENDITURES
Current
Contractual services 6,500 4,848 (1,652) -
Maintenance coniracts 1,400 541 - (839) -
Total expenditures 7.900 5,389 (2,511) -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 {2,900} (188) § 2,712 7,215
FUND BALANCE, MAY | 8.925 1,706
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 b - 8,737 3 8,925

(See independent auditor's report.)




Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
(With Prior Year Actual)

2012
Original and Variance
Final Over 201
Budget Actual (Under) Actual
REVENUES
Taxes b 104,000 § 106,147 § 2,147 § 105,414
Investment income 300 233 (67) 129
Tota) revenues 104,300 106,380 2,080 105,543
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Interest and fiscal charpes 104,500 104,375 (125} 104,000
Total expenditures 104,500 104,375 (125) 104,000
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES (200) 2,005 2,205 1,543
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers (out) - - - (43,285)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - (43,285)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 {200} 2,005 % 2,205 {41,742}
FUND BALANCE, MAY 1 2,202 43,944
FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30 b 4.207 b3 2,202

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

MAJOR ENTERFPRISE FUND

Water Operations Fund - to account for the financing of self-supporting municipal activities which
render services generally on a user charge basis to the general public. The significant characteristic
of an enterprise fund is that the accounting system makes it possible to determine whether that
particular service area is operated at a profit or a loss in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles followed by private business concemns.

_90_




Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WATER OPERATIONS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
(With Prior Year Actual)

2012
Criginal and Varionce
Final Over 2011
Budget Actual {Under) Actunl
OPERATING REVENUES
Charpes for services
Water sales 5 4,501,159 § 4,562,083 3 60924 § 4,518,645
Inspections/iap on/permils 4,000 16,385 12,385 18,850
Sale of meters , 3,500 3,586 86 2,332
Other waler sales 4.500 5,618 1,118 9,196
Total operating revenues 4,513,159 4,587,672 74,513 4,549,023
OPERATING EXPENSES: ’ T ’ T
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION
Personnel services
Salaries 434,000 486,909 52,909 417,523
Overdime 63,000 26,310 {41,690) 48,954
Social security 32,500 28,561 (3,939) 29,192
Medicare 7,592 6,692 {900) 6,392
IMRF 59,900 47,142 (12,758) 49,186
Medicallile insurance 100,000 77,315 (22,685) 08,998
Supplementnl pensions 2,400 3,600 1,200 3,185
Tola) personnel services 704,392 676,529 (27,863} - 653,430
Materials ond supplies
Liobility insurance 174,141 133,031 (41,110) 124,872
Maintenance - building 31,471 22,579 (8,892) 76,442
Mnintenance - equipment 7,600 6,611 (989) 13,053
Muintenance - waler system 130,000 119,588 (10,412} 105,632
Maintennnce - laundromaot - 50 . 50 -
Poslage 1,000 309 (691) 60
Quunlity controls 20,762 14,126 {6,636) 7.585
Service charge 250,000 250,000 - 250,000
Supplies - operation 6,850 1,350 (5,500} 716
Training and cducation . 2350 1,280 (1,070) 1,455
Telephone 10,400 9,971 (429 8,437
Unilorms 3,350 2,339 (1,011) 4,590
Utilities 46,500 47,749 1,249 49915
Vehicle {gas and oil) 18,000 20,246 2,246 15,745
Total materinls and supplics 702,424 629,229 (73,195) 658,552
Controctual
Audit ' 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Consulling/profcssional 13,350 3,742 (9,60B) 7,571
Leak detection 17,900 13,823 (4,077 17,650
Data processing 152,328 150,158 (2,170) 61,322
Janitorial service - - - -
DuPage Waler Commission 2,745,209 2,631,116 {114,093) 2,295,238
Total contractual ‘ 2,938,787 2,808,839 {129,948} 2.391,78]

(This schedule is continued on the following page.)
- 9 1 -




Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

SCHEDLUILE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued)
WATER OPERATIONS FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012
(With Prior Year Actunl)

2012 -
Oringinal and Variance
Final Over 2011
Budget Actoal {Under) Actual
OPERATING EXPENSES
EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION (Continued}
Cuopitn! outlay
Equipment . 5 58200 % 45460 § (12,821) 3 97,923
Waler meters 25.000 T 24,932 {68} 26,676
Total capitol oullay 83,200 70,401 (i2,889) 124,599
Total opernting expenses excluding
deprecintion : : 4,428 893 4,184,998 (243,895) 3,828 362
OPERATING JNCOME 84,266 402,674 318,408 720,661
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 4,000 19,977 15,977 14,742
Miscellancous income - 3,403 3,403 1,722
Debt service
Principol repoyment (164,815} (165,000) (180) (155,000)
Interest expense {142,855) {142,855} - (140,752)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) {303,674) (284,475) 19,199 {275,288}
NET INCOME (LOSS) BUDGETARY BASIS 3 {219,408) 118,199 3 337.607 441,373
Adjustments to GAAP basis
Principal repoymeat 165,000 155,000
Deprecintion {344,539) (348,741)
Totol odjustments 1o GAAP basis - {179,539) {153,741}
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS {61,340) A 247,632
NET ASSETS, MAY 1 5,846,200 5,599,268
NET ASSETS, APRIL 30 - % 5,785,560 § 5,846,900

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Pension Trust Fund - Police Pension Fund - to account for pensions paid for police officers.

. Agency Funds - to account for amounts held in deposit.
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINCIS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
POLICE PENSION FUND

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discus sion Purposes Only

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
Employee

Total contributions

Investment income-
Net appreciation
in fair value of investments
Interest

Total investment income
Less investment expense

Net investment income
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits
Contractual services
Administrative expenses
Total deductions

NET INCREASE

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

May 1

April 30

(See independent auditor's report.)
-94-

Actual

§ 1,185,043
310,448

1,495,491

311,214
586,555

897,769
(45,036)

852,733

2,348,224

1,135,485
17,917
6,079

1,159,481

1,188,743

18,859,363

5 20,048,106




Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES TN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Balances Balances
May 1 Additions Deletions April 30
ALL FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 12,880 § 179 § - 3 13,059
TOTAL ASSETS 7 5 12880 5 179 $ -3 13,059
LI.ABILIT]ES
Due to others 5 10,537 § 179 § - 8 10,716
Impact fees payable 2,317 - - 2,317
Deposits payable 26 - - 26
TOTAL LIABILITIES b 12,880 § 179 3 - 5 13,059
IMPACT FEES FUND
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents | 3 12,854 § | 179 § - 5 13,033
TOTAL ASSETS 5 12,854 § 179 % - 5 13,033
LIABILITIES
Due to others 3 10,537 % Al 79 % - 5 10,716
Impact fees payable _ 2,317 - - 2,317
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 12,854 § 179 § - 3 13,033
DARIEN ESCROW FUND
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 3 26§ - 5 - $ 26
TOTAL ASSETS 5 2§ - 5 - 3 26
LIABILITIES
Deposils payable $ 26 3 - by - 5 26
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7 5 26 % - 5 - 5 26

(See indcpendén} auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discusssion Purposes Only

SUPPLEMENTAL DATA
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Preliminany and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discus sion Purposes Oniy

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
- GENERAL OBLIGATION WATER BONDS, SERIES 2006

April 30, 2012
Date of lssue Taly 1, 2006
Date of Maturity December 15, 2025
Authorized 1ssue $3,900,000
Interest Rates 4.10% to 4.30%
‘Interest Dates June 15 and December 15
Principal Maturity Date ‘ December 15
Payable at Bank One

FUTURE PRINCTPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Fiscal : ‘ Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 15 Amount
2013 § 170,000 $ 135908 $§ 305,908 2012 $ 67,954 2012 $ 67954
2014 180,000 128,896 308,896 2013 64,448 2013 64,448
2015 185,000 121,472 306472 2014 60,736 2014 60,736
2016 195,000 113,840 308,840 2015 56,920 2015 56,920
2017 205,000 105,650 310,650 2016 52,825 2016 52,825
2018 215,000 97,040 312,040 2017 48,520 2017 48,520
2019 220,000 88,010 308,010 2018 44,005 2018 44,005
2020 230,000 78,770 308,770 2019 39,385 2019 39,385
2021 240,000 69,110 3091107 72020 34,555 2020 ~34;555
2022 255,000 59,030 314,030 2021 29,515 2021 29,515
2023 265,000 48,320 313,320 2022 24,160 - 2022 24,160
2024 275,000 37,058 312,058 2023 18,529 2023 18,529
2025 290,000 25,370 315,370 2024 12,685 2024 12,685
2026 300,000 12,300 312,900 2025 6,450 2025 6,450
3 3,225,000 31,021,374 § 4.346,374 _ $ 560,687 § 560,687

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discus sion Purposes Only

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2007B

April 30, 2012

Date of Issue May 15, 2007

Date of Maturity December 15, 2017

Authorized Issue 32,600,000

Interest Raies ‘ 4.00%

Interest Dates June 15 and December 15

Principal Maturity Date December 15

Payable at Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Fiscal | ' l Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Total June 15 Amount December 15 Amount
2013 £ 390,000 § 104,000 § 494,000 2012 $ 52,000 2012 § 52,000
2014 410,000 - 88,400 498,400 2013 44,200 2013 44,200
2015 425,000 72,000 497,000 2014 36,000 2014 36,000
2016 440,000 55,000 495,000 2015 27,500 2015 27,500
2017 460,000 37,400 497,400 2016 18,700 2016 18,700
2018 475,000 19,000 494,000 2017 9,500 2017 9,500
-$ 2,600,000 $- 375,800 § 29753800 $_187,900 .8 187,200

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2008

April 30, 2012
Date of 1ssue June 15, 2008
Date of Maturity January 1,2024
Authorized Issue $2,370,000
Interest Rates 3.00% - 4.00%
Interest Dates Janvary 1 and July 1
Principal Maturity Date January 1

Payable at - Harris Bank

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Fiscal ' Interest Due on
Year Principal Interest Total July 1 Armount Jan 1 Amount
2013 $ 130,000 3 72,194 3 202,194 2012 £ 36,097 2013 § 36,097
2014 135,000 67,320 202,320 2013 33,660 2014 3,660
2015 140,000 62,256 202,256 2014 31,128 2015 31,128
2016 145,000 57,006 202,006 2015 28,503 2016 28,503
2017 155,000 51,570 206,570 2016 25,785 2017 25,783
2018 160,000 45,564 205,564 2017 22,782 2018 22,782
2019 165,000 39,364 204,364 2018 19,682 2019 19,682
2020- 170,000—... 32,970 202,970 2019 16,485  2020- 16,485
2021 175,000 26,382 201,382 2020 13,191 2021 13,191
2022 185,000 19,600 204,600 2021 9,800 2022 9,800
2023 190,000 12,200 202,200 2022 6,100 2023 6,100
2024 115,000 4,600 119,600 . 2023 2,300 2024 2,300
§ 1,865,000 § 491,026 § 2,356,026 $ 245,513 ¥ 245,513

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS

AUDITOR’S COMMUNICATION TO THE
HONORABLE MAYOR, MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

For the Year Ended
Apnl 30, 2012

83Sikich.

Cerlified Public Accountants & Advisors
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Preliminary and Tentative

CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS For Discussion Purposes Only

AUDITOR’S COMMUNICATION TO THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
TABLE OF CONTENTS
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Preliminary and Tentafive
Certified PublimAcrettards SuipyiarOnly

s [
k h Members of Arnerican Institute of
I I @ Cerlified Public Accountants

1415 W. Diehl Road, Suite 400 « Naperville, IL 60563

August 13,2012

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Darien

1702 Plainfield Road

Darien, Illinois 60561

Ladies and Gentlemen:

As part of our audit process we are required to have certain communications with those charged
with governance at the beginning of our audit process and at the conclusion of the audit. Those
communications include information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit, as well
as other information required by Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 114. Our
communication at the beginning of our audit process along with our questionnaire regarding SAS
No. 99, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit was sent to you on May 3, 2012,

SAS No. 115 requires the communication of internal control related matters to those charged
with governance. Our managementletter, as well as @listing of future pronouncements that may
affect the City, are enclosed within this document.

In today’s accountability-driven environment, performance measurement is more important than
ever. We have prepared an analysis of selected key ratios for the City as well as benchmark data
for financial statement users to better assess the City’s relative financial condition.

This information is intended solely for the yse of the Mayor, City Council and management of
the City of Danen and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Sincerely,

Sikich LLP
By: Louis G. Karrison, CPA
Partner

-1-
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Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Cnly

August 13, 2012

The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Darien

Darien, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Darien, Iilinois for
the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 13, 2012. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generaily accepted
auditing standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated January 26, 2012.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related
to our audit. -

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The City of Darien, Illinois,
changed accounting policies related to the classification of fund balances by adopting Statement
'of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 54. We noted no transactions
entered into by the City of Darien, Illinois during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. We noted no particularly sensitive
estimates made by management during our audit of the financial statements.

-2-
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Preliminary and Tentative

City of Darien For Discussion Purposes Only

August 13, 2012

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial staterments or
a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to

* report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated August 13, 2012.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other aceountants about anditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “‘second opinion™ on certain situations. 1f a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or
a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those financial
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

-3-
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Preliminary and Tentative

City of Darien For Discussion Purposes Only

August 13, 2012

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Darien, Illinois’
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

* * * * *

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council, management of the City of
Darien, and should not be used for any other purpose.

We appreciate the courtesies extended to us by the City. If you have any questions regarding the

purpose of this letter or the requirement mentioned, please contact us.
Sincerely,
Sikich LLP

By: Louis G. Karrison, CPA
Pariner

-4 -
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City of Darien - 00
Year End; Aprll 30, 2012

Adjusting Journal Entries
Date: 5/1/2011 To=4/30/20

Preliminary and Tentative
For Discussion Purposes Only

Number Date Name Account No Debit Credit
AJED1 4/30/20912 Now Accl-Republic Bank 02-1005 D2-WF -197,510.00
AJEDT 4/30/2012 Due to Other Funds 02-2062 02-WF 187,510.00
AJEDT 4/30/2012 Now Accl -Republic Bank 12-1005 12-WDF 197,510.00
AJEDH 4/30/212 Due From Olher Funds 12-1410 12-WDF ~187,510,00
To eliminate the due fofirom
between Water subfunds
AJEOZ 4/30/2012 UNAMORTIZED BOND ISSUE COSTS 12-1224 12-WDF -1,915.96
AJEOZ 4f30f2012 UNAMORTIZED BOND DISCOUNT 12-1225 12-WDF -788,47
AJEDZ 4/30/2012  Interest Payable 12-2002 12-WDF 2,527.96
AJEOZ 4/30f2012 Bonds Payable 12-2184 12-WDF 165,000.00
AJeD2 4f3p/2012 - Debt Retire-Water Refunding 02-50-4950 02-WF . -307,673.76
AJEOZ 43002012  Transfer to Depracialion fund 02-51-4805 02-WF 107 673,76
AJEDZ 4f30/2012 Transfer from Waler Fund 12-51-2610 12-WDF -307,673.76
AJEDZ 402012 Interest 12-51-4946 12-WDF 142,673.76
AJEDZ 4202012  Interest 12-51-4845 12-WDF -2,577.86
AJED2Z 4702012 Amortizaiion 12-51-4947 12-WDF 2,708.43
To reclassify debt payment inthe
Waler fund ta reduce oulstanding balance, and to record amarlizalion of issuance ¢
and bond discount and adjust interest peyable in the Water Fund
AJED3 4730/2012 Interest Payable 98-2002 98-G 9,539.68
AJEO3 4232012 Unamariized Discount 98-2035 98-G -1,181.44
AJED3 4730/2012 Unamorlized Bond Premium 88-2065 98-G 3,260.28
AJED3 4/30/2012 Bank Loans Payable 98-2100 98-G 73,008.00
AJED2 4302012 Bank Loans Payable 98-2100 98-G —-483,466.00
AJEO3 4/3072012 Bank Loans Payable West Sub 98-2105 88-G 57,961.00
AJEDA 41342012 Deferred Loss Bond Issuance 98-2189 98-G -1,270.94
AJED3 4/30/2012 G.0O. Bonds 20078 098-2185 98-G 380,000.00
AJED3 4/30/2012 2008 GO Bonds Payable 98-2197 98-G 125,000.00
AJED3 4/30/2012 Amoriizalion on Discount 98-4904 98-G 1,181.44
AJED3 4302012 Amoriizaion on Premium 98-4905 98-G -3,268.28
AJEO3 4302012 Loan Proceeds B8B-00-3558 98-G 483,466,00
AJED3 4/30/2012 Amortization of |ssuance Cosls 98-00-4301 98-G 1,270.84
AJEC3 473072012  Principal 98-50-5000 98-G -635,970.00
AJED3 47302012  Interest 98:50-5001 96-G -9,538.68
To record changes io long-term
debt accounts in the GLTDAG
AJEO4 43012012  Qperating - Republic Bank 21-1000 21-RI -5,495.15
AJEDA 4/30/2012 Now Accl -Republic Bank 21.1005 21-Ri 148,10
AJED4 4/3142012  linois Funds 21-1150 21-RI 247
AJEDQ 43042012  Operaling - Republic Bank 25-1000 25-G1 5,4935.15
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Number Date Name Account No
AJED4 4/30/2012 MNow Accl -Republic Bank 25-1005 25-Cl 448,10
AJEOD4 14/30/2012 llinois Funds 25-1150 25-Cl 247
AJED4 4/30/2012  Transfer lo Other Funds 21-74-4605 21-R| 5,845,72
AJEDS 4130/2012 Transfer from Gther Funds 25-00-3612 25-Cl -5,945.72
To close the Road Improvement Fund
to Capital improvement Fund as of 4/30/2012
AJEDS 4/30/2012 Equipment 01-30-4815 01-GF -139,232.00
AJEDS 4/3ap/2012 Debt Retire 01-30-4805 01-GF 19,000.00
AJEOS 4/30/2012 Debt Retire 01-30-4905 01-GF B,262.00
AJEDS 4/30/2012 Principal 01-30-4806 01-5F 130,970,00
AJEDS 473002012 Debt Service - 2007A Bonds D1-754952 01-GF -18,000.00
AJEDS 4/30/2012 Debt.Retire - Property 25-35-4945 25-Cl -76,568.76
AJEQS 4/30/2012 Debt Sarvice 2008 Bonds 25-75-4950 25-Cl 76,56B.76
To reclassify debl inlerest from
principal lo reparl separately
AJEDS 4/30/2012 Real Estate Taxes Receivable 01-1204 01-GF 168,102.53
AJEOS 4/30/2012 Deferred Revenue 01-2180 01-GF -169,102.53
AJEDB 4/30/2012 Accounls Receivable 25-1201 25-Cl 72,881.94
AJEDE 4/30/2012 Deferred Revenue 25-2180 25-C| -72,881.94
AJEOS 4f30/2042 Accounts Receivable 35-1201 35-DS 44, 478,17
AJEDB 4730/2012 Delermed Revenue a5-2180 35-DS -44,478.17
To adjust property lax
recelvable/delerred revenue as of 4/30/2012
AJEQO7 4/30/2012 Water Sales Receivable-Billed D02-1220 02-WF 4,7681.86
AJEO? 4/30/2012 WWaler Sales 02-00-3310 02-WF -4,781,86
To propearly record the amount of
lhe GCity's billed receivable in the Water Fund.
AJEOB 4/30/2012 Waler Bill Receivable-Unbilled D2-1221 D2-WF 130,931.02
AJEDB 4/30/2012 Water Sales - 02-00-3310 02-WF -130,931.02
Ta properly record the amount of
the Clty's unbilled receivable in the Water Fund,
AJEDD 4/apf2012  IMRF W/H Payatle 01-2014 01-GF -1,165,25
AJEDD 4/30/2012 IMRF W/H Payable 01-2014 01-GF -1,180.15
AJEDS 4/30/2012  IMRF VWH Payable 01-2014 01-GF -1,149,82
AJEOS 4/30/2012 IMRF WiH Payable 01-2014 01-GF -1,095.96
AJEDS 4/30/2012 IMRF W/H Paysble 02-2014 02-WF -217.94
AJEDS 4/30/2012 |IMRF W/H Payable 02-2014 02-WF -234.79
AJEDS 4/30/2092 IMRF W/H Payabla 02-2014 D2-WF -209.28
AJEDS 4730/2012 MRF W/H Payable 02-2014 02-WF -196,85
AJEDG 4;30/2012 L.MR.F. 01-10-4115 01-GF 254.66
AJEDS 4;30/2012 LMR.F. D3-10-4115 1-GF 257.01
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Number Date Name Account No
AJEDD 4/30/2012  LM.R.F. 01-10-4115 M-GF 254.37
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-10-4115 01-GF 252.90
AJEODD 41302012 1LMR.F. 01-20-4115 M-GF 159,84
AJEOS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-204115 M-GF 152,15
AJEQS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-20-4115 01-GF 152.15
AJECS - 413002012 LMR.F. 1-20-4115 D1-GF 152.15
AJEDS 4/30/2012 L.M.R.F. 01-30-4115 01-GF 442,51
AJEDD 4/30/2012 I.M.R.F. 01-30-4115 01-GF 482,34
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-30-4115 11-GF 438.52
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F, 01-30-4115 01-GF 429,40
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-404115 01-GF 70.66
AJEOS 4/a0/2012 LMR.F. 01404115 01-GF 237.28
AJEO? 47302012 1LMR.F. 01-40-4115 01-GF 70,86
AJEDY 4/30{2012 LM.R.F. 01-40-4115 01-GF 217.69
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-40-4115 D1-GF 70,96
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01404115 01-GF 233.82
AJEDS 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-40-4115 01-GF 35.48
AJEDE 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 01-40-4115 01-GF 226.03
AJEOS 4302012 IM.R.F. 02-50-4115 02-WF 217.94
AJED9 4/30/2012 LM.R.F. 02504115 02-WF 234.79
AJEDS 4730/2012 1LMR.F. 02-50-4115 02-WF 209.29
AJEQZ 4/30/2012 IM.R.F. 02-50-4115 D2-WF 196,85
To correct IMRF expenditures for
January - April 2012
AJE10 4/30/2012 A/D - Machinery & Equipment 02-1990 02-WF -325,189.00
AJE1D 4732012 A/D - Machinery & Equipment ' 02-1590 02-WF -344,535.00
AJED 4730/2012  AID - Buildings 02-1991 D2-WF 325,189.00
AJEID 4/30/2012 Deprecialion 02-10-4620 D2-WF 344,535,00
To adjust Water Fund capilat
assels for FY12
AJET 4/30/2012 DIS Bond Payable-Conlracior 02-2168 02-WF -1,215.61
AJE1 4{3/2012  IMRF NPO Liability 98-2188 BB-G -10,943.52
AJE11 4/30/2012 Change in IMRF NFO 02-50-4116 02-WF , 121581
AJETT 4/30/2012 Change in IMRF NPO - GG §B-50-5601 98-G 4,030.20
AIETT 4/30/2012 Change in IMRF NFPO - PW 9p-50-5602 98-G 4,433.20
AJEN 4/30/2012 Change in IMRF NFO - PS 98-50-5603 88-G 2,480,12
Te adjust the NPO for IMRF as of
4/30/2012
AJE1Z2 4/30/2012 Gasaoline Invenlory 01-1950 01-GF -10,716.08
AdE12 4/30/2012 Vehicle (Gas and Qil) 01-40-4273 01-GF 10,7168.,08
To adjusl gasoline inveniory lo
aclual at 4/30/2012
AJE1] 4/30/2012 Accounts Payable-Prior 01-2050 01-GF 3,099.70
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Number Date Name Account No
AJE13 4/30/2012 Accounis Payable-Prior 01-2050 01-GF 6,540.00
AIE13 4/3072012 Accounis Payable-Prior 01-2050 01-GF 138.55
AIE13 4/30/2012 Accounls Recelvable 02-1201 02-WF -2.8986.91
AJE13 4/20/2012 Prepaid Expenses 02-1300 D2-WF -5,032.80
AJET3 4/30/2012 Accounts Payable-Pricr 02-2050 92-WF 9,058.00
AJE13 4/302012 Invesiigation and Equipment 01-40-4217 01-GF -6,540.00
AJE13 41302012 Invesligalion and Equipment 01-40-4217 01-GF -138.55
AJE13 402012  Unifarms 01-40-4269 01-GF -3,088.70
AJE1T 4/3o/2012  Other Waler Sales 02-00-3380 02-WF 2,966.51
AJE13 4/30/2012 Quality Controt 02-50-4241 02-WF 5,032,80
AJE13 4/30/2012 Dala Processing 02-50-4336 02-WF -,058,00
To adjust and wrile off old water
recelvable; (o reverse 09 audit nlry; to reverse 4/30/11 audit entry, to reverse prior .
period AP and adjust balance
AlE14 4/30/2012 Land 93-1910 89-5 -2,025,000.00
AJE14 413012012 Vehicles/Equipment 89-1940 59-G 846,138.00
AlE14 4/30/2012 A/D - Machinery & Equipment 89-1990 99-5 . -231,614.00
AlE14 4/30/2012 A/D- Buildings 99-1991 99-G -119,625.00
AlE14 4/302012 AD - Infrastruciure 991992 09-G -196,125.00
AJE14 4/3w2012 Fund Balance - Current 99-2990 95-G 1,377,800.00
AJET4 4/30/2012 Loss on Disposal 994000 99-G 647,200.00
AJE14 4/30/2012  Depreciation - General Govemnmend 89-5000 99-G 51,034.00
AlE14 4/30/2012 Deprecialion - Public Safety 98-5001 99-G 161,145.00
AJE14 4/30/2012 Depreciation - Public Works 98-5002 9943 635,185.00
AJE14 4/30/2012 Purchases - Public Safety 59-50-5501 99-G -695,956.00
AJE14 4/30/2012 Purchases - Public Works 98-50-5502 99-G -150,173.00
To record capilal asset changes
for governmental adivilies
7,262,582.79 -7,262,582.79
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CITY OF DARIEN, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT LETTER

April 30, 2012

NaSikich.

Certified Public Accountants & Advisors
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The Honorable Mayor
Members of the City Council
City of Darien, lllinois

Ladies and Gentlemen:

In planning and performing our audit of the governmental activities, the business type activities
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information that collectively compnise the basic
financial statements of the City of Darien, Illinois (the City) as of and for the year ended April 30,
2012, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of-America,
we considered its internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
its internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in interna] control that might be
material weaknesses. However, as described below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
contrel. In addition, we became-aware of several matters-that-are opporttmmesfor strengthening
internal controls and operating efficiency.

A deficiency in internal contro! exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
contro] that we consider to be a material weakness.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Naperville, lilinois
August 13, 2012
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We believe the following to be a deficiency:
Internal Controls - Police Department Cash Receipts

During the internal control walkthrough of Police Department cash receipts procedures ‘we noted
internal control weaknesses over the tracking and recording of cash receipts. The Department has
a manual system in place, which increases the likelihood of error. We also noted that there is
little review of the receipts by anyone besides the individual who tock payment. We rec ommend
that the Depariment require a second review of payments made to improve the controls over the
collection of payments

OTHER INFORMATION
Future Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued a number of pronouncements that
may impact the City in the future.

(GASB Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple
Employer Plans, amends Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers
Jor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, to permit an agent employer that has an
individual-employer OPEB plan with fewer than 100 total plan members to use the alternative
measurement method, at its option, regardless of the number of total plan members in the agent
multiple-employer OPEB plan in which it participates. In addition, this Statement clarifies the
frequency and timing of measurements by employers that participate in agent multiple-employer

other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans. This statement is effective for the fiscal year ending
Aprnl 30, 2013.

GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arrangements is intended to improve financial reporting by establishing recognition,
measurement and disclosure requirements for service concession arrangements (SCA), which are
types of public-private or public-public partnerships. This statement provides accounting and
financial reporting guidance for governments serving as transferors and those serving as
operators in SCAs. Statement 60 is effective for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2013.

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB ~
Statements No. 14 and No. 34, is intended to improve guidance for including, presenting, and -
disclosing information about component units and equity interest transactions of a financial
reporting entity. This Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units
in the financial reporting entity and amends the criteria for reporting component units as part of
the primary government. Statement No. 61 is applicable for the fiscal year ending April 30,
2014. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, is intended to improve
financial reporting by contributing to the GASB’s efforts to codify all sources of generally
accepted accounting principles for state and local governments so that they derive from a single
source. This Statement intends to provide more consistent application of applicable guidance in
financial statements of state and local governments. Statement No. 62 is applicable for the fiscal
year ending April 30, 2013. Earlier application is encouraged.
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
Future Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, provides guidance on the reporting of the consumption
of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period (deferred outflows),
and the acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reportin g period
(deferred inflows). Statement No. 63 is applicable for the fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2011.

GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 33, clarifies whether an effective hedging
relationship continues after the replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap counterparty’s
credit support provider. This Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective
hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. Statement
No. 64 is applicable for the fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2011.

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities
and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities. Statement No. 65 is applicable for the fiscal year
ending April 30, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections—2012—an amendment of GASB Statements No.
10 and No. 62, is intended to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental
financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements, Statements No. 54 , Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62 , Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre—November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. Statement No. 66 is
applicable for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2014.

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures
Jor Defined Contribution Plans and Statement 50 as they relate to pension plans that are
administered through trusts or similar arrangements meeting certain criteria. The Statement
builds upon the existing framework for financial reports of defined benefit pension plans, which
includes a statement of fiduciary net position (the amount held in a trust for paying retirement
benefits) and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. Statement 67 enhances note
disclosures and RSI for both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans. Statement
67 also requires the presentation of new information about annual money-weighted rates of
return in the notes to the financial statements and in 10-year RSI schedules.
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OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Future Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, replaces the
requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governrnental
Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to governments that
provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar arrangements that meet
certain criteria. Statement 68 requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to
recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first time, and to
more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The
Statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note
disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI).

We will advise the City of any progress made by GASB in developing this and other future
pronouncements that may have an impact on the financial position and results of operation of the

City.
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APPENDIX A
STATUS OF COMMENTS FROM APRIL 30, 2011

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
1.  Liability for Accrued Sick Leave

The City’s personnel manual specifies that, if certain criteria are met, employees are
eligible to receive a payout of accrued sick leave upon retirement from the City. During
our testing of payrol] and related liabilities, we noted that no liability was reported for
eligible employees. Upen inquiry, the City determined that ten employees met the criteria
for sick leave payouts as of April 30, 2011. The City proposed and recorded an adjustment
of $195,009 to recognize this liability as of April 30, 2011.

Status - comment implemented as of Apnl 30, 2012.
DEFICIENCY
1.  Accounts Payable Detail

During our testing of accounts payable, it was noted that the detail provided by
management did not agree to the general ledger balance for two funds. We recommend
that the accounts payable detail be reviewed on a regular basis and reconciled to the general
ledger to ensure accurate financial reporting.

Status - Although the detail agreed to the general ledger for all funds, we noted separate
accounts payable accounts requiring adjustment to eliminate prior year amounts. Comment
still-applicable as-of April-30;2012-
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AGENDA MEMO
City Council
August 13, 2012

ISSUE STATEMENT

A resolution authorizing the Mayor, City Clerk and Treasurer to sign a Governmental Certificate,
Business Loan Agreement and Compliance Agreement to open a line of credit with Republic
Bank.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY

The City of Darien accepted a proposal from Republic Bank in 2009 to provide banking services.
At the time one of the items discussed was a line of credit the City could draw upon in case of
emergency or cash flow deficiencies. The City of Darien has had this available in the past, but it
is currently expired. At this time staff recommends entering into an agreement with Republic
Bank to open the line of credit in the amount of $1,250,000.00. The City is not using the money
at this time; it is only keeping the option of borrowing the funds at a future date. The intention is
to use the line of credit in an emergency or if needed for cash flow. Any and all purchases will
still need to be approved by the elected officials in accordance with Darien City Code.

The included documents are the Governmental Certificate, Business Loan Agreement and -the
Compliance Agreement. These documents make the credit line available to the City of Darien.
In the event the City of Darien requires the funds, a Promissory Note, Business Loan Affidavit,
Disbursement Request and Notice of Final Agreement must also be executed by the Mayor, City
Clerk and Treasurer. These documents contain the interest rate, which for this loan is the
Republic Bank Prime Rate, which currently stands at 3.25%.

STAFF/COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approving the resolution

ALTERNATE CONSIDERATION

Not approving the resolution would be an alternate consideration.

DECISION MODE

This itern will be on the August 20, 2012 City Council agenda for formal approval.
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GOVERNMENTAL CERTIFICATE

) 0

References in the boxes above ara for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any pariicular loan or item.
Any item above containing ?~" has been omitled due 1o text length imitalions.

Eﬁtily: Clty of Darien Lender: Republic Bank of Chicago

41702 Plainfield Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darien, IL 60563 2221 Camden Court

Oak Brook, I 60523

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HIéREBY CERTIFY THAT:

THE ENTITY'S EXISTENCE. The complete and correct name of the governmental entity is City of Darien ("Entity™). Tha Entity is a
govemmental enlity which Is, and at all limes shall be, duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under and by virtue of the laws and
regulations of the State of llinois. The Entily has the full power and authorily to own its properties and to fransact the business and activities in
which it is presently engaged or presently proposes to engage. The Enlily mainiains an office at 1702 Plainfield Road, Darien, IL 60563. The
Entity shall do all things necessary to preserve and to keep in full force and effect its existence, rights and privileges, and shall comply with all
regulations, rules, ordinances, stalules, orders and decrees of the Entity and any other govermmental or quasi-governmental authority or court
applicable to the Entity and the Entity's business activities,

CERTIFICATES ADOPTED. At a meeling of the appropriate govemning body of the Entity, duly callad and held on August 13, 2012, at which a
quorum was present and voting, or by other duly aulhorized action in liev of a meeting, the resolulions set forth in this Certificate were adopted.

OFFICIALS. The following named persons is an Officials of City of Darien:
NAMES IOLES AUTHORIZED ACTUAL SIGNATURES
Kathleen Moesle-Weaver " Mayor - Y X

Michael J, Coren Treasurer Y X

Joanne Ragona City Clerk Y X

ACTIONS AUTHORIZED. Any three {3) of the authorized persons listed above may enler into any agreements of any nature with Lender, and
those agreements will bind the Entity. Specifically, but without limitation, any three {3) of such authorized persons is authorized, empowered,
and directed to do the following for and on behalf of the Entity:

Borrow Money. To borrow, as a cosigner or otherwise, from time to time from Lender, on such terms as may be agreed upon between the
Entity and Lender, such sum or sums of money as in their Judgment should be borrowed, without Hritation.

Execute Notes, To execute and deliver to Lender the promissofy note or notes, or other evidence of the Entity’s credit accommodations, on
Lender's forms, at such rates of interest and on such terms as may be agreed upon, evidencing the sums of money so borrowed or any of
the Entity's indebtedness to Lender, and also lo execule and deliver to Lender one or more renewals, extensions, modilications,
refinancings; consolidations, or substitutions for one or moreofthe rotes, any~porion of the notes, or-any other evidence ofTredit—
accommodations.

Grant Security. To morigege, pledge, transfer, endorse, hypothecate, or otherwise encumber and defiver to Lender any property now or
hereafter belonging 1o the Entity or in which the Entity now or hereafter may have an interest, including without limitation all of the Entity's
real property and all of the Entlity's personal property (tangible or intangible), as security for the payment of any loans or credit
accommodations so obtained, any promissory notes so executed {including any amendments to or modifications, renewals, and extensions
of such promissory notes), or any other or furlher indebledness of the Enlity 1o Lender at ary time owing, however the same may be
evidenced. Such properlty may be morigaged, pledged, transferred, endorsed, hypothecated or encumbered al the time such loans are
oblained or such indebtedness is incurred, or at any other lime or times, and may be either in addition {o or in lleu of any property
therelofore mortgaged, pledged, transferred, endorsed, hypothecaled or encumbered.

Execute Security Documents. To execute and deliver 1o Lender the forms of morigage, deed of trust, pledge agreement, hypothecalion
agreemant, and other security agreements and financing statements which Lender may require and which shall evidence the terms and
conditions under and pursuent to which such llens and encumbrances, or any of them, are given; and also to execute and deliver to Lender
any other wrilten instruments, any chatte! paper, or any other collateral, of any kind or nature, which Lender may deem necessary or proper
in connection with or pertaining to the giving of the liens and encumbrances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any one of lhe above
authorized persons may execule, deliver, or record linancing statements.

Negotiate ltems. To draw, endorse, and discount with Lender all drafis, trade acceptances, promissory notes, or other evidences of
Indebtedness payable to or belonging to the Entity or in which the Entity may have an interest, and either to receive cash for the same or to
cause such proceeds lo be credited to the Enlity's account with Lender, or lo cause such other disposition of the proceeds derived
therefrom as they may deem advisable.

Further Acts. In the case of lines of credit, o designate additional or altemate individuals as being authorized to request advances under
such lines, and in all cases, to do and perform such olher acts and things, to pay any and all fees and costs, and o execute and deliver
such other documents and agreements, Including agreemenis waiving the dght to a trial by jury and confessing judgment against the Entity,
as the Officials may in their discretion deern reasonably necessary or proper in order to carry into effect the provisions of this Certificate.

ASSUMED BUSINESS NAMES. The Eniily has filed or recorded all documents or filings required by law relating to all assumed business names
used by the Entity. Excluding the name of the Enlity, the following is a complete list of all assumed business names under which Ihe Entity does
business: None. . - . R

NOTICES TO LENDER. The Enlity will prompliy notify Lender In wriling at Lender's address shown above {or such other addresses as Lender
may designate from lime to Uime) prior to any (A) change in the Enlity's name; {B) change in the Entity’s assumed business name(s); (C)
change in the struclure of the Entity; (D} change in the authorized signer(s); (E) change in the Entity's principal office address; {F) change in
the Enlity’s principal residence; or (G) change in any other aspect of the Entity that directly or indirectly relales to any agreements belween the
Entity and Lender.

CERTIFICATION CONCERNING OFFICIALS AND CERTIFICATES. The Officials named above is duly elected, appoinied, or employed by or for the
Entity, as the case may be, and occupy the positions se! opposite th _ 117 _live names, This Cerlificate now stands of record on the books ol




GOVERNMENTAL CERTIFICATE
Loan No: 5724000-3 (Continued) Page 2

the Entity, is in full farce and efiect, and has not been modified or revoked in any manner whatsoever.

CONTINUING VALIDITY. Any and all acts authorized pursuant to this Cerlificale and performed prior to the passage of this Certificate are
hereby ratified and approved. This Certificate shall be continuing, shall remain in full force and eflect and Lender may rely on it until writlen
notice of its revocation shall have been delivered to and received by Lender at Lender's address shown above {or such eddresses as Lender may
designate from time to time). Any such notice shall nol affect any of the Entity's agreemenis or commitments in eflect at the ime nofice is
given.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hand and attest that the signatures set opposite the names listed abeve 15 their genuine
signatures.

We each have read all the provislons of this Certificate, and we each personally and on behalf of the Entlty certify that all statements and
representations made In this Certiflcate are true and correct. This Governmental Cenrtificaie Is dated August 13, 2012,

CERTIFIED TO AND ATTESTED BY:

Kathleen Moesle-'\wh-léaver, Mayor of City of barieﬁ

Michael J, Coren, Treasurer of City of Darien

Joanne Ragona, City Clerk of City of Darien

NOTE: If tha Olfclols signing this Cerlificale 1s designaled by 1he foregoing document as ono of tho afficipls authorized 1o ad on the Entily's behall, it is odvisabla to have this Cerdilicate signed by
al ledst ena non-authorized afficial of the Entity.

LASER PO Lorsfrg, Ver, 122.0.003 Copr. Harlesd Finencad Soldiona, (nc. BT, 2011, AN Fights Aesersad - L RACFL WINMCFULPLACSIFG TR-A85 PR-88
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BUSINESS LOAN AGREEMENT

0

References in the boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not iimit the applicability of this document to any particular loan or item.
Any item above containing """ has been omitied due to text length lirnilations.

Borrowar:  City of Darien Lender: Republic Bank of Chicago
1702 Plainfleld Road Qak Brook Corporate
Darien, IL 60563 2221 Camden Court

Dak Brook, IL 60523

THIS BUSINESS LOAN AGREEMENT dated August 13, 2012, is made and executed between City of Darlen ("Borrower") and Republic Bank of
Chicago ("Lender”) on the following terms and conditions. Borrower has recelved prior commercial loans from Lender or has applled to Lender
for a commercial loan or loans or other financial accommodations, incliding those which may be described on any exhibit or schedule attached
to this Agreement. Bomower understands and agrees that: (A) in granting, renewing, or extending any Loan, Lender Is relying upen Bormower's
representations, warranties, and agreements as set forth in this Agreement; (B) the granting, renewing, or extending of any Loan by Lender at
all times shall be subject to Lender's sole judgment and discretion; and [C) all such Loans shall be and remain subject to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

TERM. This Agreement shall be effective as of August 13, 2012, and shall continue In full force and effect until such time as alt of Borower's

Loans in favor of Lender have been paid in full, including principal, interest, costs, expenses, atlorneys' fees, and other fees and charges, or
until August 13, 2013. ’ .

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO EAGH ADVANCE. Lender's obligation to make the initiat Advance end each subsequent Advance under this

Agreement shali be subject to the fulfilment to Lender's salisfaction of all of the conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Related
Documenis.

" ‘Loan Documents. Bomower shall provide lo Lender the following documents for the Loan: (1} "the Note; (2} logether with-all such - -

Related Documents as Lender may require for the Laan; all in form and substance satisfactory to Lender and Lender's counsel.

Bomrower's Authorization. Borrower shall have provided in form and substance satisfactory to Lender properly certified resalutions, duly
authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Nole and the Related Documents. In addition, Borower shali have provided
such other resolutions, authorizations, documents and instruments as Lender or its counsel, may require.

Payment of Fees and Expenses. Borrower shall have paid 1o Lender all fees, charges, and other expenses which are then due and payable
as specified in this Agreement or any Relaled Document.

Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties set forth in this Agreement, in the Relaled Documents, and in any
document or certificate delivered to Lender under this Agreement are true and correct.

No Event of Default. There shall not exist at the fime of any Advance a condilion which would constitute an Event of Default under this
Agreement or under any Related DocumenL

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. Bomower represents and warrants to Lender, as of the date of this Agreement, as of the dale of each -
disbursement of loan proceeds, as of the date of any renewal, extension or modification of any Loan, and at all times any Indebledness exisls:

Organization. Borrower is a governmental entity which Is, and at all times shall be, duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing
under and by virtue of the laws of the State of llinols. Borrower is duly authorized to transact business in all other states in which
Borrower is doing business, having obtained all necessary filings, govemmental licenses and approvals for each state in which Borrower is
doing business. Specifically, Borrower is, and al all times shall be, duly qualified as a foreign in all states in which the failure to so qualify
would have a material adverse effect on its business or financial condition. Baorrower has the full power and authority to own its properties
and to transact the business in which it is presently engaged ar presently proposes fo engage. Bormower maintains an office at 1702
Plainfield Road, Darien, 1L 60563. Unless Bormower has designated otherwise in writing, the principal office is the oiffice at which
Borrower keeps its books and records including its records concerning the Collateral. Borrower will notify Lender prior to any change in the
location of Borrower's stale of organization or any change in Borrower's name. Borrower shall do all things necessary lo preserve and lo
kesp In full force and effsct its existence, rights and privileges, and shall comply with all regulations, rules, ordinances, statules, orders and
decrees of any gavernmental or quas-governmental authority or courl applicable to Bomower and Bormower's business activities. .

Assumed Business Names. Borrower has filed or recorded all documents or filings required t;y law relating to all assumed business names
used by Borrower. Excluding the name of Borrower, the followlng Is a complete list of all assumed business names under which Borrower
does business: None.

Authorization. Borrower's execulion, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and all the Related Documents have been duly
authorized by all necessary action by Borrower and do not conflict with, result in a violation of, or constitule e default under {1) any
provision of any agreement or other instrument binding upon Borrower or (2) any law, governmental regulation, courl decree, or order
applicable to Bommower or to Borrower's properties.

Financial Information. Each of Borower's financlal statements supplied to Lender truly and completely disclosed Borower's financial
condition as of the dale of the slalement, and there has been no material adverse change in Borower's financial condition subsequent to

the date of the most recent financial statemenl supplied to Lender. Borrower has no material conlingent obligations except as disclosed in
such financial statements.

Legal Effect. This Agreement conslitules, and any instrument or agreement Borrower is required o give under this Agreement when
delivered will constitute legal, valid, and binding obligalions of Borrower enforceable against Borrower in accordance with their respective
ierms.

Properties. Except as contemnplated by this Agreement or as previously disclosed in Borrower’s financial statements or in writing to Lender
and as accepted by Lender, and except for property tax liens for taxes not presenrily due and payable, Borrower owns and has good title to
all of Borrower's properlies free and clear of all Security Interests, and has not executed any security documents or financing slatements
relating to such properties. Al of Borrower's properties are titled in Borrower's legal name, and Borrower has not used or filed a financing
stalement under any olher name for at least the fast five (5) years.

Hazardous Substances, Excep! as disclosed to and acknowledged by Lender in writing, Borrower represents and warrants that: (1) During
the period of Borrower's ownership of the Collateral, there has been no use, generation, manufaclure, storage, treatment, disposal, release
or threalened release of any Hazardous Subslance by any person on, under; about or from any of the Collateral. (2} Bormower has no
knowledge of, or reason to believe that there has been {a) a _ 119-0r violalion of any Environmental Laws; (b) any use, generation,
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manufaciure, slorage, treatment, disposal, release or threatened release of any Hazardous Substance on, underr, about or from the
Collateral by any prior owners or occupants of any of the Collateral; or {¢) any actual or threatened litigation or clairns of any kind by any
person relating to such matters. (3) Neither Borrower nor any tenant, contractor, agent or other authorized user of any of the Collateral
shall use, generate, manufacture, store, treat, dispose of or release any Hazardous Substance on, under, about or from any of the
Collaieral; and any such activity shall be conducted in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and
ordinances, including without limitation all Environmental Laws. Bommower authorizes Lender and its agenis to enter upon the Collateral to
make such inspections and tests as Lender may deem appropriate to determine compliance of the Collateral with this section of the
Agreement. Any Inspections or tests made by Lender shall be at Borrower's expense and for Lender's purposes only and shall not be
construed to create any responsibility or liability on the part of Lender to Borrower or to any other person. The representations and
warranties contained herein are based on Borrower's due diligence In investigating the Collateral for hazardous wvasie and Hazardous
Subslances. Borrower hereby {1} releases and waives any future claims against Lender for indemnity or contribution in the event
Borrower becomss liable for cleanup or other costs under any such laws, and {2) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Lender
against any and all claims, losses, llabiliies, damages, penallies, and expenses which Lender may directiy or indireclly sustain or suffer
resulting from a breach of this section of the Agreement or as a consequence of any use, generation, manufacture, storage, disposal,
release or threatened release of a hazardous waste or substance on the Collateral. The provisions of this section of the Agreement,
including the obligalion to indemnify and defend, shall survive the payment of the Indebledness and the terrnination, expiration or
salisfaction of this Agreement and shalf not be affected by Lender's acquisifion of any interest in any of the Collateral, whether by
foreclosure or otherwise.

Litigation and Claims, No litigation, claim, investigalion, administrative proceeding or similar action (including those for unpaid taxes)
against Borrower is pending or threatened, and no other event has eceurred which may materially adversely affect Borrower's-financial
condilion or properlies, other lhan litigation, claims, or other events, if any, that have been disclosed to and acknowledged by Lender in
wiiling.

Taxes. To the best of Borrower's knowledge, all of Borrower's tax retums and reports that are or were required to be filed, have been
filed, and all taxes, assessments and other govermmental charges have been paid in full, except those presently being or to be contesled by
Borrawer in good faith in the ordinary course of business and for which adequate reserves have beenprovided. - =~ -

Lien Priority. Unless olherwise previously disclosed to Lender in writing, Bomrower has noi enlered inlo or granted any Securily
Agreements, or permilted the filing or attachment of any Security Interests on or affecting any of lhe Collateral direclly or indireclly
securing repayment of Borrower's Loan and Note, that would be prior or that may in any way be superior to Lender's Securily Interests and
rights in and to such Collaleral,

Binding Effect. This Agreement, the Nate, all Security Agreemenlts (if any), and ail Related Documents are bindling upon the signers
thereof, as well as upon their successors, represenlatives and assigns, and are legally enforceable in accordance with Lheir respective
terms.

AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS. Borrower covenants and agrees with Lender that, so long as this Agreement remains in eflect, Borrower will:

Netices of Claims and Litigation. Promptly inform Lender in writing of (1) all material adverse changes in Borrower's financial condition,
and (2) all existing and all ihreatened litigation, claims, investigations, administralive proceedings or similar actions affecting Borrower or
any Guarantor which could materially affect the financial condition of Borrower or the financial condition of any Guarantor,

Financial Records. Maintain its books and records in accordance with GAAP, applled on a consistent basis, and permit Lender lo examine
—ard audit Borrower's books-and tecords at all reasonabletimes.

Financlal Statements. Fumish Lender with the following:

Annual Statements. As soon as available, but in no event later than thirly (30) days after the end of each fiscal yesr, Borrower's
balance sheel and income statement for the year ended, prepared by Borrower.

Interim Statemenls As soon as available, but in no event fater than thirty (30) days after the end of each ﬁscal quarier, Borower's
balance sheet and proft and loss statement for the period ended, prepared by Bomower.

Ali financial reports required to be provided under this Agreement shall be prepared In accordence with GAAP, applied on a consistent
basis, and certified by Borrower as being true and comecL

Additfonal Information. Fumish such additionat information and stalemen'ls as Lender may request from !ime 1o time.

insurance. Maintain fire and other risk i insurance, public liahility insurance, and such other insurance as Lender may require with respect to
Borrower's properties and operations, in form, amounts, coverages and with insurance companies acceptable to Lender. Borrower, upon
request of Lender, will deliver to Lender from time to time the policies or certificates of insurance In form satisfactory to Lender, Including
stipulalions that coverages will not be canceiled or diminished without at least ten (10) days prior written notice to Lender. Each insurance
policy also shall include an endorsement providing that coverage In favor of Lender will not be Impaired in any way by any act, omission or
default of Borrower or any other person. in conneclion with all palicies covering assets in which Lender holds or is offered a securily
interest for the Loans, Borrower will provide Lender with such lender’s loss payable or olher endorsements as Lender may require.

Insurance Reports. Fumish to Lender, upon request of Lender, reporls -on each exisling insurance paolicy showihg such information as
Lender may reasonably request, including without limitalion the following: (1) the nama of the insurer; {2) the risks insured; (3) the
amount of the policy; (4} the properties insured; {5) the lhen cument properly values on the basis of which insurance has been obtained,
and the manner of determining those values; and (B) 1he expiration date of the policy. In addition, upon requesi of Lender {howaver not
more oflen than annually), Borrower will have an independent appraiser satisfactory to Lender detenmina, as applicable, the actual cash
value or replacement cosl of any Collaleral. The cost of such appraisal shall be paid by Borrower.

Other Agreements. Comply with all terms and conditions of all other agreements, whelher now or hereafler existing, between Borrower
and any other party and notify Lender immediately in writing of any default in connection with any other such agreements.

Loan Proceeds. . Use all Loan proceeds solely for Bormrower's business operations, unless specifically consented 1o the: conlrary by Lender in
writing, ' .
Taxes, Charges and Liens. Pay and discharge when due all of its indebtedness and obligations, including without limitation all assessments,
taxes, govemmenial charges, levias and liens, of every kind and nature, imposed upon Borrower or its properties, income, or profits, prior
to the date on which penalties would attach, and all Jawful claims that, if unpaid, might become a lien or charge upon any of Borrower's
properlies, income, or profilts, Provided however, Barrower will not be required 1o pay and discharge any such assessment, tax, charge,
levy, lien or claim so long as (1) the legality of the same shall be conlested in good failh by appropriale proceedings, and (2) Borrower
shall have eslablished on Borrower's books adequale reserves wilth saznact 1o such contesied assessment, tax, charge, levy, lien, or claim
in accordance with GAAP. -120-
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Performance. Perform and comply, in a timely manner, with all terms, conditions, and provisions set forth in this Agreeement, in the Relaled
Documents, and in all other instrumenis and agreements belween Borrower and Lender. Borrower shall notify Lender immediately in
writing of any default in connection with any agreement.

Operations. Maintain executive and management personnel wilh substantially the same gualiications and experience as the present
execulive and management personnel; provide written nolice to Lender of any change in executive and management personnel; conducl its
business affairs in a reasenable and prudent manner.

Environmental Studies. Promptly cenduct and complete, at Borrower's expense, all such Investigations, studies, samplings and testings as
may be requested by Lender or any govemmental authority relative to any substance, or any waslts or by-product of any substance defined
as toxic or a hazardous substance under applicable federal, state, or local law, rule, regulation, order or directive, at or aflecting any
properly or any facility owned, leased or used by Borrower.

Compliance with Governmental Requirements. Comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations, now or hereafter in effect, of all
govemmental authorities applicable to the canduct of Borrower's properiies, businesses and operations, and to the use or occupancy of the
Collateral, including without limitation, the Americans With Disabilities Act. Borrower may contest In goed faith any such law, ordinance,
or regulalion and withhold compliance during any proceeding, including appropriate appeals, so long as Borrower has notified Lender in
writing prior to doing so and so long as, in Lender's sole oplnion, Lender's interests in the Colleteral are not jeopardized, Lender may
require Borrower to post adequate security or a surely bond, reasonabiy satisfactory to Lender, lo protect Lender's interest.

Inspection. Permit employees or agents of Lender at any reascnabla fime to inspect any and ail Collateral for the Loan or Loans and
Borrower's other properties and to examine or audit Borrower's books, accounts, and records and to make copies and memoranda of
Borrower's books, accounts, and records. I Borrower now or at any time hereafter maintains any records {including without limitation
computer generated records and computer software programs for the generation of such records) in the possession of a third party,
Borrower, upon request of Lender, shall netify such parly to penmit Lender free access to such records at all reasonable times and to
provide Lender with copies of any records it may request, all at Borrower's expense,

_ Compliance Gertificates, Unless waived in writing by Lender, provide Lender al least annually, with a certlficale executed by Barower's
chief financiat officer, or other officer or person acceplable to Lender, certifying that the representations and warranties set forlh in this
Agreement are true and correct as of the date of the cerlificate and further certifying that, as of the date of the cernlilicate, no Event of
Defauit exists under this Agreement.

Environmental Compliance and Reports, Borrower shall comply in ali respects with any and all Environmental Laws; niot cause or permit Lo
exist, as a resull of an Intentional or unintentional aclion or omission on Borrower's part or on the part of any third parly, on property
owned and/or occupied by Borrower, any environmenlal aclivily where damage may result lo the environment, unless such envirdnmentat
aclivity is pursuant to and in compliance with the conditions of a penmnit issued by the appropriate federal, state or local governmental
authorities; shall fumish to Lender promptly and in any event within thirty (30} days after recelpt thereof a copy of any nolice, summons,
lien, citation, directive, letter or ather communication from any govemmental agency or instrumentallty conceming any intenfional or
unintentional action or omission on Bomrower's parl in canneclion with any environmental aclivity whether or not there is damaga te the
envionment and/or other natural resources.

Additional Assurances. Make, execule and deliver to Lender such promissory notes, morigages, deeds of trust, securily agreements,
assignments, financing statements, Insiruments, documenls and other agreements as Lender or its atlorneys may reasonably request 1o
evidence and secure the Loans and to perfect all Security Interests.

LENDER'S EXPENDITURES. If any action or proceeding is commenced that would materially affect Lenders interest in the Collateral or if
Borrower fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement or any Related Documents, including bul not lirited to Borrower's fallure to
discharge or pay when due any arnounts Borrower is required to discharge or pay under this Agreement or any Related Documents, Lender on
Borrower's behalf may {but shail no! be obiigated lo) take any aclion thal Lender deems appropriate, including but nol limited 1o discharging or
paying all taxes, liens, security interests, encumbrances and other claims, at any lime levied or placed on any Collaleral and paying all costs for
insuring, maintaining and preserving any Collateral. All such expenditures incurrad or paid by Lender for such purposes will then bear interest at
the rate charged under the Note from the date incurred or paid by Lender to the date of repayment by Borrower. All such expenses will become
a part of the Indebledness and, at Lender's option, will (A} be payable on demand; (B) be added o the balance of the Nole and be
apporlioned among and be payable with any instaliment paymenis to become due during either (1) the term of any applicable insurance palicy;
or (2) the remaining term of the Note; or {C) be treated as a balloon payment which will be due and payable at the Nole's maturity.

NEGATIVE COVENANTS. Borrower covenants and agrees wilth Lender Lhat while this Agreement Is In effect, Borrawer shall not, without the
prior written consent of Lender: .

Indebtedness and Liens. (1) Except for trade debt incurred in the normal course of business and indebledness to Lender contemplated by
Ihis Agreement, create, incur or assume indebtedness for bormowed money, including capilal leases, (2) sell, ransfer, morigage, assign,
pledge, lease, grant a security interest In, or encumber any of Borrower's assets (excep! as allowed as Permitted Liens), or (3) sell with
recourse any of Bommower's accounts, except to Lender.

Continuity of Operations. (1) Engage in any business aclivities substantially different than those in which Borower is presently engaged,
(2) cease operations, liguidale, merge, transfer, acquire or consolidate with any other entity, changa ils name, dissalve or transfer or sell
Coilateral out of the ordinary course of business, or (3} make any distribution with respecl to any capital account, whether by reduction of
capital or otherwise.

Loans, Acquisitions and Guaranties. (1) Loan, invesl in or advance money or asseis to any other person, enterprise or entily, (2)
purchase, creale or acquire any interest in any other enlerprise or entfity, or {3) incur any obligation as surety or guarantor other than in
the erdinary course of business.

Agreements. Enter into any agreernent containing any provisions which would be violated or breached by the performance of Borower's
obligations under this Agreement or in cennection herewith.

CESSATION OF ADVANCES. If Lender has made any commilment to make any Loan to Borrower, whether under this Agreement or under any
olber agreement, {ender shall have no cbligation to make Loan Advances or to disburse Loan proceeds if: {A) Borrower of any Guarantor is in
defaull under the terms of this Agreement or any of the Relaled Documents or any other agreement that Borrower. or any Guarantor has with
Lender; (B) Borrower or any Guarantor dies, becomes incompetent or becomes insoivent, [iles a petition In bankruplcy or simllar proceedings,
or is adjudged a bankrupt; (C) there occurs a material adverse change in Borrower's financial condition, in the financlal condition of any
Guarantor, or in lhe value of any Collateral securing any Loan; or (D) any Guarantor seeks, clalms or otherwise altempts 1o limil, modify or
revoke such Guarantor's guaranly of the Loan or any other loan with Lender; or {E) Lender in good faith deems ilself insecure, even though no
Event of Default shall have occurred. -

RIGHT OF SETOFF. To the exient permitled by applicable law, Len - 1 2 1 ~2s a right of setoff in all Barrower's accounts with Lender (whether
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checking, savings, or some other account}. This includes all accounts Borrower holds jointly with someone else and all accounts Borrower may
open in the fulure. However, this does not Include any IRA or Keogh accounts, ar any trust accounts for which seloff would be prohibited by
law. Bomower authorizes Lender. 1o the extent permitted by applicable law, o charge or setoff all sums owing on the dexbt against any and all
such accounts.

DEFAULT. Each of the following shall constitute an Event of Default under this Agreemenl:
Payment Default. Borrower fails to make any payment when dua under the Loan,

Other Defaults, Borrower falls to comply with or to perform any other term, obligation, covenant or condition conlained in this Agreement
or in any of the Relaled Documents or o comply with or to perform any term, cbligation, covenant or condition contained in any olher
agreement between Lender and Borrower. .

Default in Favor of Third Parties. Borrower or any Granltor defaulls under any loan, extension of credit, securilty agreement, purchase or
sales agreement, or any other agreemenl, in favar of any other creditor or person that may materally affect any of Borrower's or any
Grantor's properly or Borrower's or any Grantor's ability to repay the Loans or perform their respeclive obligations under this Agreement or
any of the Related Documents.

False Statements. Any warranty, representar.lon or slatemenl made or furnished to Lender by Borrower or on Borrovwer's behalf under this
Agreement or the Relaled Documents is falss or misleading in any material respect, either now or at the time made or fumished or becomes
false or misleading at any time thereafiter.

Death or Insolvency. The death of Borower or the dissolution or termination of Bormower's existence as a going business, the insolvency
of Borrower, the appointment of a receiver for any part of Borrower's property, any assignment for the benefit of creditors, any type of
creditor workout, or the commencement of eny proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or against Borrower.

Defective Collateralization. This Agreement or any of the Relaled Documents ceases to be in full force and effec! (including faflure of any
collateral document to create a valid and perfected security Interest or lien) at any time and {or any reason.

" Creditor or Forfeiturs Proceedings. - Commencement- of foreclosurs or -forfeiture proceedings, whether by judicial- proceeding, -setf-heip,
repossession or any other method, by any creditor of Borrower or by any govemmental agency against any collateral securing the Loan.
This includes a garmishment of any of Borrower's accounts, inciuding deposit accounts, with Lendar. However, this Event of Default shall
not apply if there is a good faith dispute by Bormower as to the validily or reasonableness of the claim which Is tha basis of the creditor or
fordeiture proceeding and if Borrower gives Lender written notice of the creditor or fordeiture proceeding and deposits with Lender monies or
a surely bond for the creditor or foreiture proceeding, in an amount determined by Lender, in iis sole discrelion, as belng an adequate
reserve or bond for the dispute.

Events Affecting Guarantor. Any of the preceding evenls occurs with respect to any Guarantor of any of the Indebtedness or any
Guarantor dies or becomes incompetent, or revokes or disputes the validity of, or liability under, any Guaranty of the Indebtedness.

Adverse Change. A material adverse change occurs in Borrowers financial condition, or Lender believes the prospect of payment or
performance of the Loan is impaired.

Insecurity. Lender in good faith believes itself insecure,

Right to Cure, If any default, other than a default on Indebtedness, is curable and if Borrower or Grantar, as the case may be, has not been

-glven. a. nolice of a.similar default within the_preceding twelve (12).months,_it may be cured if Borrower or Grantor, as the case may be,
afler Lender sends written nolice to Borrower or Grantar, as the case may be, demanding cure of such defauit: (1} cure the default within
fifleen (15) days; or {2} i the cure requires more than fifteen (15) days, immediately initiate steps which Lender deems in Lender's soie
discretion to be sufficient to cure the default and thereafter conhnua and complete all reasonable and necessary sleps sufficient to produce
compliance as soon as reasonably practical.

EFFECT OF AN EVENT OF DEFAULT. If any Even! of Default shall occur, except where otherwise provided in this Agreement or the Relaled
Documents, all commitments and obligations of Lender under this Agreement ar the Relaled Documents or any other agreement immediately will
terminate (including any obligation to make further Loan Advances or disbursements), and, at Lender's option, all Indebledness immediately will
become due and payabie, all without notice of any kind to Borrower, except that in the case of an Evenl of Default of the type described in the
"Insolvency” subsection above, such acceleratlon shall be automatlc and not optional. In addition, Lender shall have all the rights and remedies
provided in the Related Documents or avaitable at law, in equity, or olherwise. Except as may be prohibited by applicable law, all of Lender's
rights and remedies shall be cumulative and may be exercised singularly or concurrently. Election by Lender to pursue any remedy shall not
exclude pursuit of any olher remedy, and an eleclion to make expenditures or to lake action to perform an obligaiion ‘of Borrower or of any
Grantor shall not affect Lender's right to declare a default and to exercise its rights and remedies.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Agreemenl:

Amendments. This Agreement, together with any Relaled Documents, conslilutes the_entire understanding and agreement of the parlies
as to the matlers set forlh in this AgreemenL No alteration of or amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in wrillng
and signed by the party or parlies sought to be charged or bound by the alteration or amendment.

Attorneys' Fees; Expenses. Bomower agrees to pay upon demand all of Lender's cosis and expenses, including Lender's atiomeys' fees
and Lender's legal expenses, incurred in conneclion with the enforcement of this AgreemenL Lender may hire or pay someone else to help
enforce this Agreemen!, and Bormower shall pay the costs and expenses of such enforcement. Cosis and expenses include Lender's
alomeys’ fees and legal expenses whether or not there is a lawsuil, including attorneys' fees and legal expenses for bankrupley
proceedings (including efforls to modify or vacate any automatic stay or injunclion), appeals, and any anticipated post-judgment callection
services. Borrower also shall pay all court costs and such additional fees as may be directed by the court.

Caption Head'ings. Caption headings in this Agreement are for convenience purposes only and are not to be usad to interpret or define the
provisions of this Agreement.

Consent to Loan Paricipation. Bomower agrees, and consents lo Lender's sale or transfer, whether now or later, of one or more . .

participation interests in the Loan to one or more purchasers. wheiher reiated or unrelated to Lender. Lender may- provide, without any
limitation whatsoever, to any one or more purchasers, or potential purchasers, any information or knowledge Lender may have aboul
Borrower or about any other mater relafing to the Loan, and Borrower hereby waives any rights o privacy Borrower may have with respect
to such matters. Bomrower addilionally waives any and all notices of sale of participation Injerests, as well es all notices of any repurchase
of such parlicipation inlerests. Borrower also agrees that the purchasers of any such paricipation interests will be considered as the
absolute owners of such interests in the Loan and will have all the rights granted under the participation agreement or agreements
governing 1he sale of such participation interests. Borrower fulher waivas all rights of offset or counlerclaim that it may have now or later
against Lender or against any purchaser of such a paricipatior _ 122 _nd unconditionally agrees that either Lender or such purchaser may
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enforce Borrower's obligation under the Loan irrespective of the failure or insolvency of any holder of any interest im the Loan. Borrower
further agrees thal the purchaser of any such parlicipation Interests may enforce its interesls imespective of any personal claims or
defenses that Borrower may have against Lender.

Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by federal law applicable to Lender and, to the extent not preempted by federal law, the
laws of the State of [liinois without regard to its conflicts of law provisions. This Agreement has been accepted by Lender in the State of
llinols.

No Walver by Lender. Lender shall not be deemed to have waived any rights under this Agreement unless such waiver is given in writing
and signed by Lender. No delay or omission on the part of Lender in exerclsing any right shall oparate as a walver of such right or any
other right. A walver by Lender of a provision of this Agreement shall not prejudice or constitute a waiver of Lend er's right otherwise to
demand strict compliance with that provision or any other provision of this Agreement. No prior waiver by Lender, nor any course of
dealing between Lender and Borrower, or between Lender and any Grantar, shall canstitute a waiver of any of Lender's rights or of any of
Bormower's or any Grantar's obligations as fo any future transactions. Whenever the consent of Lender is required under this Agreement,
the granting of such consent by Lender in any instance shall not constitule continuing consent to subsequent instance s where such consent
Is required and In all cases such consent may be granted or withheld In the sole discrellon of Lendar.

Natices. Any noflce required to be given under this Agreement shall be glven in writing, and shall be effectlve when aclually delivered,
when actually received by lelefacsimile (unless otherwise required by law), when depositad with a nationally recognized ovemnighl courier,
ar, if mailed, when deposited in the United States mall, as first class, cerlified or registered mall postage prepald, directad o the addresses
shown near the beginning of this Agreement. Any parly may change its address for notices under this Agreement by giving formal written
nolice to the other parties, specifying that the purpose of the nolice Is to change lhe party's address. For notice purposes, Bormower
agrees to keep Lender Informed at all times of Borrower's current address. Unless olherwise provided or required by law, if there is mare
than one Borrower, any notice given by Lender to any Borrower is deemed to be notice given to-all Borrowers,

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any provision of this Agreement to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable as to any
circumstance, that finding shall not make the offending provision illegal, invalid, or unenforceable as to any other circumstance. If feasible,

the-offending provision shall be considered modified so that it becomes legal;-valld -and-enforceable:-If the-offending ‘provision cannct be so -+~ - "

modified, it shall be considered deleted rom this Agreement. Unless olherwisa required by law, the illegality, invalidity, or unenforceability
of any provision of this Agreement shall nct affect the legality, validity or enforceability of any other provision of this AgreemenL

Subsidiaries and Afflliates of Bomrower. To the exient the context of any provisions of this Agreement makes it appropriate, including
without Hmitation any representation, warranty or covenant, the word "Bormrower™ as used In this Agreement shall Inciude sl of Borrower's
subsidiaries and affiliales. Notwithstanding the foregolng however, under no circumstances shall this Agreement be construed 1o require
Lender to make any Lean or olher financial accommodation to any of Borrower’s subsidiaries or affillates.

Successors and Assigns. Al covenants and agreemenis by or on behalf of Borrower contained In this Agreement or any Relaled
Documents shall bind Borrower's successors and assigns and shall Inure to the benefit of Lender and its successors and assigns. Borrower
shall not, however, have the right to assign Borrower's rights under this Agreement or any Interest therein, without the prior written
consent of Lender.

Survival of Representations and Warranties. Borrower understands and agrees thal in extending Loan Advances, Lender is relying on all
representations, warranties, and covenanils made by Borrower in this Agreement or in any cerlificate or other instrument delivered by
Borrower to Lender under this Agreement or the Relaled Documents. Borrower furlher agrees that regardless of any investigation made by
Lender, all such represeniations, warmanties—and covenants will-survive—the exiension 'of Loan- Advances and deliveryto-tenderof-the
Related Documents, shall be continuing in nature, shall be deemed made and redated by Borrower at the time each Loan Advance Is made,
and shall remaln in full force and eflecl until such time as Borrower's Indebledness shall be paid In full, or untli this Agreement shall be
terminated in the manner provided above, whichever is the last to oceur.

Time Is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of this AgreemenL

Walve Jury. All parlles to this' Agrecment hereby waive the right to any Jury tral In any action, proceeding, or counterciaim brought by any
party against any cother party.

DEFINITIONS, The following capitalized words and terms shall have the following meanings when used in this Agreement. Unless specifically
stated lo the contrary, all references to dallar amounts shall mean amounts in lawfut money of the United States of America. Words and terms
used in the singular shall include the plurat, and the plural shall include the singular, as the context may require. Words and terms nat otherwise
defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings altributed o such terms in the Uniform Commercial Code. Accounting words and terrms not
otherwisa defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings assigned to them in accordance with generally accepted aceounting principles as in
effect on the date of this Agreemenl:

Advance. The word "Advance” means a disbursement of Loan funds made, or to be made, to Barrower or on Borrower's bshall on a fine
of credit or multiple advance basis under the terns and conditions of this Agreement.

Agreement. The word "Agreement” means this Business Loen Agreement, as this Business Loan Agreement may he amended or modified
from time 1o time, togelher with all exhibits and schedules attached to this Business Loan Agreement from time to time.

Borrower. The word "Borrower™ means Cily of Darfen and includes all co-signers and co-makers signing the Note and all thenr successars
and assigns.

Collateral. The word "Callateral” means all properly and assels granted as collateral security for a Loan, whather real or personal property.
whether granted direclly or indirectly, whether granled now or In the future, and whether granted in the form of a securly interest,
morlgage, collateral morigage, deed of trust, assignment, pledge, crop pledge, chatlel mortgage, collateral chattel mortgage, chaitel trust,
factor's lien, equipment trust, conditional sale, trust receipt, Hen, charge, lien or litle retention contract, lease or consignment intended as a
securily device, or any other security or lien interest whatsocever, whether crealed by law, contract, or otherwise.

Environmental Laws, The words "Environmenial Laws" mean any and all state, federal and local statutes, regulatiens and ordinances
relating {o the protection of human heallh or the environment, including without limitation the Comprehensive  Environmential Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Seclion 9601, el seq. ("CERCLA"), the Superfund Amendments and
Reaulhorization Act of 1986, Pub. L No. 89-439 {"SARA"); the Hazardous Malerials Transporiation Act, 49 U.S.C. Section 1801, et seq.,
the Resource Caonservalion and Recovery Act, 42 U5, C Section 6901, et seq., or other applicable state or federal laws, rules ar
regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

Event of Default. The wurds "Event of Defaull” mean any of the events of default set forih in this Agreement in the default section of this
Agreement.

GAAP. The word "GAAP™ means generally accepled accounth - 12 3 -1s.
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Grantor. The word "Grantor®™ means each and all of the persons or enlities granling a Security Interest in any Collateral for the Loan,
including without limitation all Borrowers granting such a Security Interest.

Guarantor. The word "Guarantor” means any guarantor, surety, or accommodation party of any or all of the Loan.

Guaranty. The word "Guaranly” means the guaranty from Guaranter to Lender, including without limitation a guaranity of all or part of the
Note.

Hazardous Substances. The words "Hazardous Substances” mean materals that, because of their quantity, concentration or physical,
chemical or infectious characleristics, may cause or pose a prasent or potential hazard to human health or the environment when
improperly used, treated, stored, disposed of, genarated, manufactured, transporled or otherwise handled. The words "Hazardous
Substances” are used in thelr very broadest sense and include without limilation any and all hazardous or toxic substances, materials or
wasle as defined by or listed under the Environmental Laws. The term "Hazardous Substances” also includes, without fimitation, pelraleum
and petroleum by-products or any fraction thereof and asbestos. .

Indebtedness. The word "Indebtedness™ means the indebtedness evidenced by the Note or Related Documents, including all principal and
interest together with all other indebledness and cosis and expenses for which Bomrower is responsible under this Agreement or under any
-of the Related Documents.

Lender. The word "Lender” means Republic Bank of Chicago, Its succassors and assigns.

Loan. The word "Loan" means any and all leans and financial accommodations from Lender io Borrower whether now or hereafier
existing, and hawever evidenced, including without limitation those leans and financial accommodations described hereln or described on
any exhibit or schedule attached te this Agreement from time to time. -

Note. The word "Note® means the Note dated August 13, 2012 and executed by City of Daren in the principal amount of $1,250,000.00,
together with all renewals of, extensions of, modifications of, refinancings of, consolidations of, and substitulions for the note or credit
agreement.

- ----~Parnitted-Liens. ~The-words-"Permitted-Liens” mean (1} ' llens-and security interests securing Indabtedness owed- by-Borrower to-Lender;~ -
(2} liens for taxes, assessments, or similar charges either not yet due or being contested in good faith; (3) liens of materialmen,
mechanics, warehousemen, or camiers, or olher like liens arising in the ordinary course of business and securing obligalions which are not
yet delinquent; (4) purchase money liens or purchase money security interests upon or in any property acquired or held by Borrower in the
ordinary course of business to secure indebtedness outstanding on the date of this Agreement or permilled to be ingumed under the
paragraph of this Agreement lilled "Indebtedness and Liens™; (5) liens and securily interasts which, as of the date of this Agreement,
have been disclosed 1o and approved by the Lender in wriling; and (6) those liens and security interests which in the aggregate consfitule
an Immaterial and insignificant monetary amount with respect to the net value of Borower's assets.

Related Documents. The words "Related Documents” mean ell promissory notes, credit agreements, loan agreements, environmentat
agreements, guaranties, security agreemenls, morlgages, deeds of trust, security deeds, collateral morlgages, and all oiher instrurments,
agreements and documents, whether now or hereafler exisling, executed in connection with the Loan,

Securlty AgreemenL. The words "Security Agreement® mean and include wilhout limitation any agreemenls, promises, covenanls,
arangements, understandings or other agreemenis, whether created by law, contract, or otherwise, evidencing, goveming, representing, or
creating a Security Interest ’ .
‘Security-Interest— The words "Security Interest"-mean, without imitation; any—and-alHypes of collaieral-security,-present -and-future;,—
whether in the form of a lien, charge, encumbrance, morlgage, deed of lrust, security deed, assignment, pledge, crop pledge, chattel
morigage, collateral chattel morlgage, chattel trusi, factor's lien, equipment trusl, conditional -sale, trust receipt. lien or tille retenlion

contract, lease or consignment intended as a security device, or any olher security or lien Interest whalsoever whether created by law,
contract, or otherwise.

BORROWER ACKNDWLEDGES HA\;’ING READ ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THIS BUSINESS LDAN AGREEMENT AND BORROWER AGREES TO
ITS TERMS. THIS BUSINESS LOAN AGREEMENT 13 DATED AUGUST 13, 2012.

BORROWER:

CITY OF DARIEN

By: By

oren, Treasurer c;f Cit; dfl

Wichael J.

eéf;‘i‘ﬁ;:es e-Weaver, Niéyor of City of Darien

By:. L
- Joanne Ragona, City Clerk of City of Darien

LENDER:
REPUBLIC BANK OF CHICAGO

_By:
=" "Authorized Officer

LASER PO Lardiey. Var, 12.3,0003 Cigr, |lariand Flwreial Sohawnn, iec. 197, 2012, Al Fiphis Herered. - L AACF]_WIACFILPLCIOFG TR-6305 PRAS
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PROMISSORY NOTE

10 1 1]

References in the boxes abave are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicabliity of this document 1o any parlicular loan or item.
Any ilem abova contalning """ has been omitled dus to text lenglh limitations.

Borrower:  City of Darien Lender: Republic Bank of Chicage
1702 Plainfleld Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darien, L 60563 2227 Camden Court

Oak Brook, IL 60523

Principal Amount: $1,250,000.00 Date of Note: August 13, 2012

PROMISE TO PAY. City of Darien ("Borrower"} promises to pay to Republlc Bank of Chicage {“Lender"}, or order, in lawful money of the United
States of America, the principal amount of One Million Twe Hundred Fifty Thousand & 00/100 Dollars ($1,250,000.00) or so much as may be
outstanding, together with Interest on the unpald culstanding principal balance of each advance. Interest shall be calculated from the date of
each advance until repayment of each advance.

PAYMENT. Borrower will pay this loan in one.payment of all outstanding principal plus all accrued unpaid interest on August 13, 2013. In
addition, Borrower will pay regular monthly payments of all accrued unpald interest dus as of each payment date, beginning September 13,
2012, with all subsequent Interest payments lo be due on the same day of each month after that. Unless otherwise agreed or required by
applicable Jaw, payments will be applied first to any accrued unpaid interast; then o principal; then to any unpaid collection costs; and then to
any late charges. Borrower will pay Lender at Lender's address shown above or at such other place as Lender may designate in writing.

VARIABLE INTEREST RATE. The inlerest rate on this Note is subject io change from {ime to time based on changes In an independent index
which is the the Republic Bank Prime Rate (the "Index"}. The Index is nol necessarly the lowest rate charged by Lender on its loans. If the
Index becomes unavailable during the term of this loan, Lender may designate a substiiute index after notifying Borrower. Lender wiil teli

.. Borrower _the_current. Index _rate upon. Borower's. requeslL _The interest rate. change will_not occur..more..often_than  each.day... Borrower .

understands that Lender may make loans based on other rates as well. The Index currently is 3.250% per annum. Interest on the unpaid
principal balance of this Nete will be calculated as described in the "INTEREST CALCULATION METHOD" paragraph using a rate equal to the
index, resulting in an Initial rate of 3.250%. NOTICE: Under no circumstances will the interest rate on this Nole be more than the maximum
rate allowed by applicable law.

INTEREST CALCULATION METHOD. Interest on this Note is computed on a 365/360 basis; that is, by applylng the ratio of the interest rate
over a year of 360 days, multiplied by the outstanding principal balance, mulliplied by the actual number of days the principal balance is
outstanding. Al interest payable under this Note is computed using this method.

PREPAYMENT. Borrower may pay without penalty all or a porlion of the amount owed earfier than it Is due. Eary payments will not, unless

_agreed to by Lender In writing, relleve Borrower of Borrower's cblfigalion to continue to make payments of accrued uppald interest. Rather, early

payments wilt reduce the princlpal balance due. Bomower agrees not to send Lender payments marked "paid in full", “without recourse”, or
similar lJanguage. )f Bormower sends such a payment, Lender may accept it without losing any of Lender's rights under this Note, and Borrower
will remain obligated to pay any further amount owed to Lender. Al writlen communications concerning disputed amoints, including any check
or other payment instrument that indicates that the payment constitutes "payment in full” of the amount owed or that is lendered wilh other
condilions or fimitalions or as full salisfaction of a disputed amount must be mailed or defivered to: Republic Bank of Chicago, Oak Brook

——Cuorporale, 2221 Camden-Court; Oak BrookIL 60523.

LATE CHARGE. }f a payment is 5 days or more late, Borrower wilt be charged 5.000% of the regularly scheduled payment.

INTEREST AFTER DEFAULT. Upon default, including failure to pay upon final maturily, the interest rate on this Note shall be increased 1o
18.000%. However, in no event will the interest rale exceed lhe maximum interest rate limitations under applicable law.

DEFAULT. Each of the following shall constitute an event of default {"Event of Default™) under this Note:
Payment Default. Borrower falls to make any payment when due under this Note.

Other Defaults. Borrower fails to comply with or to perdform any olher term, abligation, covenant or condition contained in this Nate or in
any of the related documents or to comply with or to perform any term, obligation, cavenant or condition contained in any olher agreement
between Lender and Borrower.

Default In Favor of Third Pariles. Bomower or any Granlor defaulls under any loan, extenslon of credit, security agreement, purcha'se ar
salés agreement, or any other agreement, in favor of any other creditor or person that may malerially affect any of Borrower's property or
Borrower's ability 1o repay this Note or perforrn Borrower’s obligafions under this Note or any of the related documents.

False Statements. Any warranty, representation or sialterment made or furnished to Lender by Borrower or on Borrower’s behalf under this
Nate or the related documents is false or misleading in any material respect, either now or at the lime made or furnished or becomes false
or misleading at any time thereafter.

Death or Insolvency. The death of Borrower or the dissolulion or 1erminalion of Borrower’s existence as a going business, the insclvency
of Borrawer, the appointment of a receiver for any part of Borrower's property, any assignment for the benefil of credilors, any type of
creditor workout, or the commencement of any proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws by or against Borrawer.

Creditor or Forfeiture Proceedings. Commencement of foreclasure or forfeiture proceedings, whether by judicial proceeding, self-help,

repossession or any other method, by any creditor of Barmower or by any governmental agency against any collaleral securing the loan,

This includes a gamishment of any of Bomower's accounts, including deposil accounts, with Lender. However, this Evenl of Default shall

not apply if there is a good faith dispule by Borrower as lo the valldity or reasonableness of ihe claim which is the basis of Lhe creditor or

forfeiture proceeding and if Borrower gives Lender written notice of the creditor or forfeiture proceeding and depasits with Lender monies or

a surely bond for the creditor or forfelture proceeding, in an amount determined by Lender, In its sole discretion, as being an adequate
. reserve or bond for the dispute, __ . - S .

Events Affecting Guaranter. Any of the preceding events occurs with respect 1o any guarantor, endorser, surety, or accommodation party
of any of the indebtedness or any guaranior, endorser, surely, or acconwnodation pary dies or becomes incompetent, or revokes or
disputes the validity of, or liability under, any guaranty of the indebtedness evidenced by this Note.

Adverse Change, A material adverse change occurs in Borrower's financial condition, or Lender believes the prospect of payment or
performance of this Note is impaired. '

Insecurity. Lender in good faith believes itself insecure.
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Cure Provisions. If any defaull, other than a default In paymentl is curable and if Borrower has not been glven a notice of a breach of the
same provision of this Note within the preceding twelve (12) months, it may be cured if Borrower, afier Lender sends written notice io
Bomrower demanding cure of such default: (1) cures the default within fifteen {15) days; or (2) if the cure reqguires mare than filleen (15}
days, immediately Inifiates steps which Lender deems in Lender's sole discretion to be sufficient 1o cure the default and thereafier
continues and completes all reasonable and necessary steps sufficient to produce compliance as soon as reasonably praclical.

LENDER'S RIGHTS. Upon default, Lender may declare the entire unpaid prineipal batance under this Note and all accrued unpald interest
immediately due, and then Borrower wilf pay that amount,

ATTORNEYS' FEES; EXPENSES. Lender may hire or pay someone else to help collect this Note if Borrower does not pay. Barower will pay
Lender that amount. This includes, subject to any limits under applicable law, Lender's attomeys' fees and Lender's legal expenses, whether or
not there is a lawsult, including attorneys' fees, expenses for bankruptcy proceedings {including efforts to modify or vacate any automatic stay
or injunction), and appeals. If not prohibited by applicable law, Borrower also will pay any court costs, in addition to all other sums provided by
law. .

JURY WAIVER. Lender and Borrower hereby walve the right to any jury trial in any action, proceeding, or counterclalm hrdughl by either Lender
or Borrower against the other.

GOVERNING LAW. This Note will be governed by federal law applicable to Lender and, to the extent not preempted by ferderal law, the taws of
the State of lilinols without regard to its conllicts of law provisions. This Note has been accepted by Lender In the State of lilinois.

CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT. Borrower hereby irrevocably authorzes and empowers any altorney-at-law to appear in any court of record and
to confess judgment against Borrawer for the unpaid amount of this Note as evidenced by an affidavit signed by an officer of Lender setting
forth the amount then due, attormeys' fees plus cosls of suit, and to release all ermors, and waive all rights of appeal. If a copy of this Note,
verified by an affidavit, shall have been filed in the proceeding, it will not be necessary to file the original as a warmant of atlorney. Borrower
walves the right 1o any stay of execution and the benefit of all exemption laws now or hereafter in effect. No single exercise of the foregoing
warrant and power 1o confess judgment will be deemed o exhaust the power, whether or not any such exercise shall be held by any court to be
invaiid, voidable, or void; but the power will continue_undiminished and may be exercised from time_ to time as Lender may elect until all
amounts owing on this Note have been paid in full. Borrower hereby walves and releases any and ali claims or causes of aclion which Borrower
might have against any attorney acling under the lerms of autherily which Bomrower has granted herein arising out of or connected with the
confession of judgment hereunder.

DISHONORED ITEM FEE. Borrowar will pay a fee to Lender of $30.00 if Borower makes a peyment on Borower's loan and the check or
preauthorized charge with which Borrower pays Is later dishonored.

RIGHT OF SETOFF. To lhe extent permitied by applicable law, Lender reserves a right of setoff in all Borrower's accounts with Lender (whether
checking, savings, or some other account). This Includes all accounts Bommower holds jointly with someone else and all accounts Borrower may
open in the future. However, this does not include any IRA or Keogh accounts, or any trust accounts for which setoff would be prohibited by
law. Bomower aulhorizes Lender, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to charge or seloff all sums owing on Ihe debt againsl any and ali
such accounts.

LINE OF CREDIT. This Nole evidences a revolving line of credit. Advances under this Note, as well as directions for payment from Borower's
accounts, may be requested orally or in writing by Bomower or by an authorized person. Lender may, but need not, require that all oral requests
be confirmed in writing. Bomower agrees to be llable for all sums eilher: (A) advanced In accordance with the instructions of an aulhorized
person or (B) credited to any of Borrower's accounts with Lender. The unpald princlpal balance owlng on this Note at any time may be
evidenced by endorsements on this Note or by Lender's intemal records, including daily computer print-auts.

SUCCESSOR INTERESTS. The terms of Ihis Note shall be binding upon Bormower, and upon Borrower's heirs, personal representatives,
successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of Lender and its successors and assigns.

GENERAL PROVISIONS. If any parl of this Note cannot be enforced, this fact will riot affect the rest of the Nale. Lender may delay or forgo
enforcing any of its righls or remedies under this Nole without losing them. Borrower and any other person who signs, guamantees or endorses
this Nole, 1o the extent allowed by law, waive presentment, demand for payment, and notice of dishonor. Upon any change in the terms of this
Nate, and unless otherwise expressly slaled in writing, no pary who signs this Nole, whether as maker, guaranior, accommodation maker or
endorser, shall be released from liability. All such parties agree that Lender may renew or exiend {repeatedly and for any length of lime} this
loan or release any parly or guarantor or collateral; or impair, [ail 1o realize upon or perfect Lender's security interest in the collateral; and take
any other aclion deemed necessary by Lender without the consent of or notice to anyone. All such parlies also agres that Lender may rmodify
this loan without lhe consent of or notice o0 anyone other than the party with whom the modification I1s made., The obligalions under this Note
are joint and several. ' ’

PRIOR TO SIGNING THIS NOTE, BORROWER READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THIS NOTE, INCLUDING THE VARIABLE
INTEREST RATE PROVISIONS. - BORROWER AGREES TO THE TERMS OF THE NOTE.

BORROWER ACKNOWILEDGES RECEIPT OF A COMPLETED COPY OF TH}S PROMISSORY NOTE.

BORROWER:

CITY OF DARIEN

Kathleen Moesle-Weaver, Mayor of City of Darien Michael J. Coren, Treasurer of City of Darien

Joanne Ragona, City Clerk of City of Darien

LASER PTIO Larachiegy, Wor, 12.2.0.003 Eopi, Harttd Frmmclal Sokaiong, bog, TRAT, 2012, Al ITphus Reserved - IL RACFI_WRACFRLPLIIOFC TA-6105 FRBE
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COMPLIANCE AGREEMENT

References in lhe boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document 1o any parlicuslar Joan or item.
Any item above containing **~*"" has been omitted dus to text length limitatlons.

Borrower:  City of Darien Lender: Republic Bank of Chicage
1702 Plainfield Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darlen, IL 60563 2224 Camden Court

QOak Brook, IL 60523

In order to induce REPUBLIC BANK OF CHICAGO, an Hincis Banking Corporation ("Bank"} to make the above referenced loan, and in
consideration of Bank making sald toan, the undersigned hereby agree, covenanl, and warrant to Bank that the undersigned will fully cooperata
with Bank, or any closing agent employed by Bank with regard to sald loan, in order to 1} correct any clerical errors, inaccuracies or
misstatements which may be discovered by Benk in its loan review procedures, and 2) execule such new, addilional or rnissing documents or
Instirumenis as may now or hereafier be required by law or by any nule or regulation promulgated by Bank's regulatory agencles, or which may
be required by Bank In order for it to comply with any law or any rule or regulation promulgated by Bank's regulatory agencies, or which the
Bank, In its sole discretion, may deem necessary or desirable inorder to sell, convey or marke! said loan to any agency of the Federal’
Government or eny other third party.

The undersigned specifically authorize the Bank to unilalerally correct clerical, typographical ar other errors in and to the Ioan documenis so that
Ihe [oan documents fully comply and are consistent with the terms and conditions upon which the Ipan was granted.

The undersigned agres that, if the undersigned shall fail to comply with the terms of this Agreement, such failure shall be deemed a breach
under any MNote, Morlgage or Security Agreement or other loan document evidencing or securing the above referenced loan, and such breach, if
not cured wilhin the period provided in such Note, Morigage, Security Agreement or other loan document, shall cause all sums then due under
any such Nole to become immediately due and payable, o

City of Darien

By:

Kathleen Moesle-Weaver, Mayor

By:

Michael J. Coren, Treasurer

By:

Joanne Ragona, Cily Clerk

LASER PTI0 Lerding: Ver, 12.2 0001 Com. Hartand Finarclal Gohuflona, inc. 1097, 202 A3 Righs Pommenl. « . AACF] WINCFRLPLIGEIFC TR4DIS P00
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BUSINESS LOAN AFFIDAVIT

References in the boxes abave are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any particular loan or itemn.
Any item above canlaining ™ **" has been omitled due to tex! Jength limitations.

Borrower:  City of Darien Lender: Republic Bank of Chicago
1702 Plainfield Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darlen, IL 60563 2221 Camden Court

Oak Brook, IL 60523

The undersigned, as a duly authorzed officer of City of Darien, {"Borrower"), upon oath, deposes and states as follows:

1) That sald Borrower has been granted a loan in the amount of ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND NO/M00 DOLLARS
{$1,250,000.00) by REPUBLIC BANK DF GHICAGO.

2} That the proceeds of said loan will be used for the following purpose and for no other purpose: WORKING CAPITAL

3) That such loan consiifutes a business loan which is exempled from lhe disclosure requirement of Regulation Z (Truth in Lending) of the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

4) That such loan constitutes a business loan as the same may be defined by the llinois Interest Acl as how or hereafier amended.

5) Thal the Guaranly, Nole, Morlgage, Securily Agreemenl, Financing Stalement, Collateral Assignment andfor other loan documents have
been examined ard underslood by lhe Borrower. It is specilically undersiood that the Guaranty contains a confession of judgment and jury
waiver clause.

-Clty of Darien

By:

Kaihleen Moesle-Weaver, Mayor
By:

Michael J. Coren, Treasurer
By;

Joanne Ragona, City Clerk

Subseribed and sworn 1o before me
This day of . 20 .

Notary Public

THIS AFFIDAVIT IS GIVEN UNDER DATH. DO NOT SIGN UNTIL YOU HAVE READ I7.

LASER PTU) Levuling Vet 122,00 DY Coge. Fexlang Finanelsl Goliions, bnc. 1197, 2HZ. AR Rigws Reserved. - L RACFI WRICFILPLAGED FC TR-EJ15 A
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DISBURSEMENT REQUEST AND AUTHORIZATION

References in the boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any particular Joan or itemn,
Any item above containing "***" has been omilled due lo text length limitations.

Borrower:  City of Darlen Lender: Republic Bank of Chlcago
1702 Plainfleld Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darfen, IL 60563 2221 Camden Court

Oak Brook, IL 60523

LOAN TYPE. This is a Variable Rale Nondisclosable Revolving Line of Credit Loan to a Government Enlity for $1,250,000.00 due on August
13, 2013.

PRIMARY PURPOSE OF LOAN, The primary purpose of this loan is for:
O Personal, Family, or Househeld Purposes or Personal Investmant.
¥ Business.

DISBURSEMENT INSTRUCTIONS. Borrower understands that no foan proceeds wilt be disbursed untii ali of Lender's conditions for making the
loan have been salisfied. Please disburse the loan proceeds of $1,250,000.00 as follows:

Undisbursed Funds: $1,250,000.00
Note Principak: $1.250,000.00

FINANCIAL CONDITION. BY SIGNING THIS AUTHORIZATION, BORROWER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS TO LENDER THAT THE
INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE IN BORROWER'S
FINANCIAL CONDITION AS DISCLOSED IN BORROWER'S MOST RECENT FINANCIAL STATEMENT TCQ LENDER. THIS AUTHORIZATION IS
DATED AUGUST 13, 2012,

BORROWER:
CITY OF DARIEN

By: o ERa By: i BN
Michael J. Coren, Treasurer of City of Darien

By: L T e e e
Joanne Ragona, City Clerk of City of Darien

LASER PO Larxding, War. 122 DK Copr, Flariand Financal Bowtiors, Inc. 1007, J082 A Fights fiesened, - 1. RACH WINMCFILFLUZDFG TH-E195 PR-BG
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NOTICE OF FINAL AGREEMENT

References in the boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not limil the applicability of this document 16 any particular loan or item.
Any item above containing ™***" has been omitled due to text length limitations.

Borrower:  City of Darien - Lender: Republic Bank of Chicago
1702 Plainfield Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darjen, IL 60563 2221 Camden Courl

Oak Brook, |Il. 60523

BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT EACH PARTY REPRESENTS AND AGREES THAT: (A) THE WRITTEN LOAN
AGREEMENT REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES, (B} THERE ARE NO
UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES, AND {C) THE WRITTEN LOAN AGREEMENT .
MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF ANY PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEQUS, OR SUBSEQUENT
ORAL AGREEMENTS OR UNDERSTANDINGS OF THE PARTIES.

As used in this Notice, the following terms have the following meanings:

Loan. The term "Loan™ means the following described loan: a Variable Rate Nondisclosable Revolving Line of Credit Loan {o a
Government Entity for $1,250,000.00 due on August 13, 2013,

Loan Agreement. The lern “Loan Agreemeni” means.one’or more promises, promissory notes, agreemerits, underiakings, security.
agreements, deeds of trust or other documents, or commitments, or any combination of those actions or documents, relating to the
Loan, including without limitation the following:

LOAN DOCUMENTS

Govermmental Cerlificate: City of Darien Busines-s Loan Agreement
Promissory Note Compliance Agreement - Compliance Agreement
Business Loan Aflidavit - Business Loan Affidavit Disbursement Reques! and Authorization

Notice of Final Agreement

Parlies. The term "Parlies” means Republic Bank of Chicago and any and all entities or individuals who are obligated to repay the
loan or have pledged property as secunty for theé Loan, including without limitation the following:

Borrower: City of Darien

Each Party who signs below, other than Republic Bank of Chicago, acknowledges, represents, and warrants to Republic Bank of Chicago that
it has recelved, read and undersiood this Notice of Final Agreement. This Notice is dated August 13, 2012.

BORROWER:

CITY OF DARIEN

Ey:':"

Kathleen Moesle-Weaver, Mayor of City of Darien - Michael J. Coren, Treasurer of City of Darien

By: T e O RN
Joanne Ragona, City Clerk of City of Darien

LENDER:

REPUBLIC BANK OF CHICAGO

X
Authorized Officer

LASER M0 Leviding, Yot 1220003 Co, Hartam Finaodat Solulions, inc. 10UT, 2012 An ITghts Reweneed. - B AACF_WINCFPLG1.FC TR-F135 PR
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NOTICE OF FINAL AGREEMENT

References in the boxes abaove are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any parlicular loan or item.
Any item abovae containing """ has been omitted due to tex! length limitations.

Borrower:  City of Darlen Lender: Republic Bank of Chicago
1702 Plainfield Road Oak Brook Corporate
Darien, I. 60563 2221 Camden Courl

Oak Brook, IL 60523

BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT EACH PARTY REPRESENTS AND AGREES THAT: (A) THE WRITTEN LOAN
AGREEMENT REPRESENTS THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES, (B) THERE ARE NO
UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES, AND (C) THE WRITTEN LOAN AGREEMENT
MAY NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF ANY PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS, OR SUBSEQUENT
ORAL AGREEMENTS OR UNDERSTANDINGS OF THE PARTIES.

As vsed in this Notice, the following terms have the following meanings:

Loan. The lerm "Loan™ means the following described loan: a Variable Rale Nondisclosable Revolving Line aof Credit Loan to a
Government Entity for $1,250,000.00 due on Apgust 13, 2013.

-Loan Agreement. The term "Loan Agreement” means one or- more promises, promissory- notes,. -agreements; undertakings, security
agreemenis, deeds of trust or other documents, or commitments, or any combination of those actions or dol:urnents, relating to the
Loan, including without limitation the following:

LOAN DOCUMENTS

Governmental Cerificate: City of Darien Business Loan Agreement
Promissory Note Compliance Agreement - Compliance Agreement
Business Loan Affidavit - Business Loan Aflidavit Disbursement Request and Authorization

Nolice of Final Agreement

Parties. The term "Parlies” means Republic Bank of Chicago and any and all entities or individuals who are obfigated to repay the
loan or have pledged properly as security for the Loan, including without limitation the following:

Borrower: City of Darien

Each Party who_signs below, other than Republic Bank of Chicagoe, acknowledges, represents,_ and warrants lo Republic Bank of Chicago that
i has recelved, read and understood this Notice of Final Agreement. This Nofice is dated August 13, 2012,

BORROWER:

CITY OF DARIEN

By: - .. IR IR By:-'-:'. o s e i =
Kathleen Moesla-Weaver, Mayor of City of Darien i Michael J. Coren, Treasvrer of City of Darien

By: - G T I U
Joanne Ragona, City Clerk of City of Darien

LENDER:

REPUBLIC BANK OF CHICAGD

X
Authorized Officer
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